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         1                    P R O C E E D I N G S

         2           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  SIR.

         3           MR. LACOVARA:  THANK YOU, YOUR HONOR.

         4                 CONTINUED CROSS-EXAMINATION

         5  BY MR. LACOVARA:

         6  Q.   DR. FISHER, COULD YOU TURN TO PARAGRAPH 158 OF YOUR

         7  DIRECT TESTIMONY, PLEASE.

         8  A.   YES, SIR.

         9  Q.   I'M PARTICULARLY INTERESTED IN THE LAST SENTENCE, IN

        10  WHICH YOU OPINE THAT IN THE PRESENT CASE THE

        11  ANTICOMPETITIVE EFFECTS ARE LARGE AND THE TECHNOLOGICAL

        12  BENEFITS APPEAR TO BE SMALL OR NONEXISTENT.

        13           NOW, DO YOU NOT REGARD YOURSELF AS COMPETENT TO

        14  ASSESS THE TECHNOLOGICAL BENEFITS OF SOFTWARE DESIGN;

        15  ISN'T THAT CORRECT?

        16  A.   YES, IT IS.

        17  Q.   AND WHEN YOU SAY THE BENEFITS APPEAR TO BE SMALL OR

        18  NONEXISTENT, YOU WERE BASING YOUR OPINION ON THE TESTIMONY

        19  OF THE GOVERNMENT'S SOFTWARE EXPERTS; IS THAT CORRECT?

        20  A.   YES, I AM.

        21  Q.   AND TO THE EXTENT THAT THEY HAVE UNDERESTIMATED THE

        22  BENEFITS OF THE DESIGN OF WINDOWS 98, THE BALANCE THAT IS

        23  IMPLIED BY THIS SENTENCE WOULD NEED TO BE ADJUSTED;

        24  CORRECT?

        25  A.   POSSIBLY, BUT I REMIND YOU THAT THE ISSUE ISN'T JUST
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         1  WHETHER THEY UNDERESTIMATED THE BENEFITS.  IT ALSO HAS TO

         2  DO--WHETHER THEY THERE ARE BENEFITS, I MEAN.  IT ALSO HAS

         3  TO DO WITH WHETHER THE BENEFITS HAVE BEEN ACHIEVED IN THE

         4  LEAST RESTRICTIVE WAY.

         5  Q.   OKAY.  AND IS THAT BASED ON SOME ECONOMIC PRINCIPLE

         6  OR YOUR UNDERSTANDING OF THE LAW, OR IS THIS SOME NEW

         7  THEORY THAT WE JUST LEARNED TODAY?

         8  A.   IT'S HARDLY A NEW THEORY.

         9  Q.   WHERE DOES THIS LEAST RESTRICTIVE WAY ITEM COME FROM?

        10  A.   I WOULD HAVE THOUGHT--I WOULD HAVE THOUGHT THAT THAT

        11  WAS PART AND PARCEL OF THE ECONOMICS OF WHAT CONSTITUTES

        12  ANTICOMPETITIVE ACTIONS.

        13  Q.   OKAY.  AND CAN YOU TELL ME IN SUMMARY TERMS WHAT YOU

        14  BELIEVE THE TECHNOLOGICAL BENEFITS ARE.

        15  A.   IF ANY?

        16  Q.   IF ANY.

        17  A.   WELL, THE PRINCIPAL ONE IS THE SEAMLESS WORKING OF

        18  THE BROWSER WITH THE OPERATING SYSTEM, AND THAT HAS TO DO

        19  WITH THE PROVIDING THE USER WITH, AS IT WERE, A COMMON

        20  BROWSING EXPERIENCE WHEN THEY BROWSE THEIR OWN FILES--THAT

        21  IS, THE FILES ON THEIR OWN DISK--AND THEY BROWSE THE

        22  INTERNET.  THEY GET A COMMON INTERFACE, AND THEY CAN MOVE

        23  BACK AND FORTH WITH NO DIFFICULTY.

        24  Q.   ARE YOU AWARE OF ANY OTHER--WHAT YOU WOULD CALL

        25  "TECHNOLOGICAL BENEFITS," AS YOU USED THE PHRASE IN
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         1  PARAGRAPH 158, THAT FLOW FROM THE DESIGN OF WINDOWS 98, OR

         2  IS THE COMMON BROWSING EXPERIENCE THE ONLY ONE THAT COMES

         3  TO MIND?

         4  A.   NO.  I CAN THINK OF ONE MORE.

         5  Q.   AND WHAT IS THAT, SIR?

         6  A.   IT CAN AT LEAST BE ARGUED THAT THE DESIGN OF INTERNET

         7  EXPLORER IN WINDOWS 98 SO THAT IT AND WINDOWS 98 SHARE A

         8  LOT OF CODE, SAVES, SO TO SPEAK, AN EXTRA FOOTPRINT ON THE

         9  HARD DRIVE, CREATES ROOM ON THE HARD DRIVE.

        10  Q.   SO, ECONOMY OF DISK SPACE AND COMMON BROWSING

        11  EXPERIENCE, THOSE ARE THE TWO TECHNOLOGICAL BENEFITS THAT

        12  YOU BELIEVE INURE FROM THE DESIGN OF WINDOWS 98?

        13  A.   IF THEY DO.

        14  Q.   AND NONE OTHERS?

        15  A.   WELL, NONE THAT COME TO MIND RIGHT NOW, NO.

        16  Q.   IF YOU WOULD TURN TO PARAGRAPH 165.

        17  A.   OKAY.

        18  Q.   YOU HAVE A QUOTE THERE FROM SOMEONE NAMED CARL BASS

        19  OF AUTODESK.

        20  A.   YES.

        21  Q.   AND MR. BASS IS TALKING ABOUT SOMETHING CALLED

        22  WININET?

        23  A.   YES.

        24  Q.   WHAT IS WININET?

        25  A.   I WOULD HAVE TO LOOK THAT UP.
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         1  Q.   PLEASE TAKE WHATEVER TIME YOU NEED.

         2  A.   LET'S SEE IF I CAN FIND OUT.

         3           (PAUSE.)

         4  A.   SORRY.  I SHOULD HAVE READ THE QUOTE EARLIER.

         5           WININET IS A SERVICE THAT IS OBVIOUSLY PROVIDED

         6  WITHIN IE.

         7  Q.   AND DO YOU KNOW WHAT IT DOES?

         8  A.   NOT AS I SIT HERE I DON'T, NO.

         9  Q.   DO YOU KNOW WHETHER NETSCAPE'S WEB-BROWSING SOFTWARE

        10  MAKES USE OF WININET?

        11  A.   I DO NOT.  I ASSUME IT DOES NOT MAKE USE OF THAT

        12  PARTICULAR PROGRAM WHICH I TAKE TO BE A PART OF IE.

        13  Q.   AND WHY WOULD YOU ASSUME THAT NETSCAPE'S WEB-BROWSING

        14  SOFTWARE DOES NOT MAKE USE OF A PARTICULAR PROGRAM THAT

        15  YOU ASSUME IS PART OF IE?

        16  A.   WELL, AS I SAY, I DON'T ACTUALLY KNOW, BUT IT'S MY

        17  VIEW THAT NETSCAPE SELDOM AND MICROSOFT OFTEN WRITES

        18  PROGRAMS WITH NAMES THAT BEGIN W-I-N.

        19  Q.   DO YOU UNDERSTAND THAT NETSCAPE'S WEB-BROWSING

        20  SOFTWARE, SINCE WINDOWS 95 WAS FIRST INTRODUCED, HAS

        21  CALLED ON A SET OF API'S EXPOSED BY THE WININET FILES THAT

        22  MR. BASS IS TALKING ABOUT?

        23  A.   I DON'T KNOW.

        24  Q.   DO YOU UNDERSTAND THAT IF YOU REMOVED INTERNET

        25  EXPLORER, YOU SAY THIS PROGRAM IS PART OF INTERNET
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         1  EXPLORER, IF IT WERE THE CASE THAT WHAT I REPRESENTED TO

         2  YOU IS A FACT, THAT NETSCAPE'S WEB-BROWSING SOFTWARE WOULD

         3  NOT WORK ON WINDOWS?

         4  A.   NOT IF YOU REMOVE INTERNET EXPLORER IN THE ONLY WAY

         5  THAT MAKES SENSE TO ME.

         6  Q.   OKAY.  DO YOU KNOW THAT, IN FACT, NETSCAPE ASKED TO

         7  SEE THE WININET API'S AND THEY WERE PROVIDED TO NETSCAPE

         8  PRIOR TO THE DEVELOPMENT OF NETSCAPE'S WEB-BROWSING

         9  SOFTWARE FOR WINDOWS 95?

        10  A.   I DO NOT KNOW.

        11  Q.   DID YOU KNOW THAT THERE ARE DOCUMENTS--I THINK EVEN

        12  DOCUMENTS THAT YOU QUOTED--FROM MICROSOFT PEOPLE THAT SAY

        13  MARC ANDREESSEN WANTED THE WININET FUNCTIONALITY BECAUSE

        14  IT WOULD SAVE HIM TIME, QUOTE, DICKING AROUND WITH

        15  LOW-LEVEL STUFF IN THE OPERATING SYSTEM?

        16  A.   WELL, THAT MAY BE TRUE.  I DON'T REMEMBER.

        17  Q.   DO YOU BELIEVE IT IS EFFICIENT FROM AN ECONOMIC

        18  PERSPECTIVE TO REMOVE CODE LIKE WININET AND THEN EXPECT

        19  EVERY SINGLE ISV THAT WOULD OTHERWISE CALL ON THAT CODE TO

        20  HAVE TO REDISTRIBUTE IT WITH THEIR SOFTWARE?

        21  A.   NO.  THAT'S NOT THE POINT BEING MADE HERE, EITHER.

        22  Q.   DO YOU HAVE ANY ESTIMATE OF THE ADDITIONAL CODING

        23  TESTING OR QUALITY ASSURANCE COSTS THAT WOULD BE INCURRED

        24  IF INDIVIDUAL SOFTWARE VENDORS WERE REQUIRED TO

        25  REDISTRIBUTE CODE, WHICH IS A SUBJECT YOU TALK ABOUT IN
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         1  YOUR TESTIMONY?

         2  A.   YES.

         3  Q.   DO YOU HAVE ANY ESTIMATE WHAT THE ADDITIONAL

         4  CODE--EXCUSE ME--CODING, TESTING, QUALITY ASSURANCE OR

         5  WHAT OTHER ADDED COSTS WOULD BE?

         6  A.   NO.

         7  Q.   DO YOU BELIEVE IN EVALUATING THE RELATIVE BENEFITS OR

         8  HARMS OF THE DESIGN OF WINDOWS 98 THAT YOU WOULD NEED TO

         9  KNOW WHAT THE COSTS OF REDISTRIBUTING THIS CODE THAT

        10  OTHERWISE EVERY ISV IN THE WORLD CAN COUNT ON ON BEING IN

        11  WINDOWS WOULD BE?

        12  A.   WELL, I POINT OUT THAT EVERY ISV IN THE WORLD COULD

        13  NOT COUNT ON A FIXED VERSION OF THIS BEING IN WINDOWS 95,

        14  IF THAT'S WHAT THIS ENTIRE QUOTATION IS ABOUT.

        15  Q.   WELL, YOU DON'T KNOW WHAT THE "THIS" IS, AND YOU

        16  DON'T ACTUALLY KNOW WHAT MR. BASS IS TALKING ABOUT, DO

        17  YOU, SIR?

        18  A.   OH, I DON'T THINK THAT'S RIGHT.

        19  Q.   OKAY.

        20  A.   I KNOW ENOUGH ABOUT WHAT MR. BASS IS TALKING ABOUT TO

        21  KNOW THAT HE'S TALKING ABOUT HAVING TO SUPPLY HIS OWN

        22  VERSION TO BE SURE THAT THE RIGHT VERSION IS THERE THAT HE

        23  WANTS TO USE.

        24  Q.   I SEE.  AND DO YOU KNOW--DID YOU CHECK TO SEE WHAT

        25  CODE THE AUTODESK PRODUCT ACTUALLY DISTRIBUTES?
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         1  A.   NO.

         2  Q.   OKAY.  LOOK AT PARAGRAPH 169, WHERE YOU TALK ABOUT

         3  MICROSOFT'S AGREEMENTS WITH INTERNET SERVICE PROVIDERS.

         4  AND IN THIS THAT SECTION, SPECIFICALLY PARAGRAPH 171, YOU

         5  TALK ABOUT ISP'S BEING INTERESTED IN HAVING FAVORABLE

         6  PLACEMENT ON WINDOWS DESKTOP.

         7           WHICH ISP'S WERE GIVEN FAVORABLE PLACEMENT ON THE

         8  WINDOWS DESKTOP BY MICROSOFT?

         9  A.   WELL, I INCLUDE IN MY DEFINITION OF ISP'S THE ONLINE

        10  SERVICE PROVIDERS.  AND IN WINDOWS 95 THERE IS A FOLDER

        11  THAT APPEARS ON THE DESKTOP WHICH CONTAINS, IF YOU OPEN

        12  IT, CONTAINS THE ICONS OF SOME OF THE ISP'S.  THAT

        13  INCLUDES AOL, IT INCLUDES AT&T, AND THERE ARE MORE, BUT I

        14  DON'T REMEMBER AT THE MOMENT WHICH THE OTHER ONES ARE.

        15  Q.   COMPUSERVE AND PRODIGY?

        16  A.   SOUNDS RIGHT.

        17  Q.   BUT THEY'RE NOT ACTUALLY ON THE DESKTOP.  THEY'RE ONE

        18  CLICK AWAY FROM THE DESKTOP; CORRECT?

        19  A.   YEAH, BUT THAT IS A FAVORABLE POSITION.  THEY ARE IN

        20  A PLACE THAT COULD BE REACHED EASILY FROM THE DESKTOP.

        21  Q.   WHEN YOU SAY IT'S FAVORABLE IN TERMS OF FEWER MOUSE

        22  CLICKS, HOW DO YOU MEASURE FAVORABLE PLACEMENT WITHIN

        23  WINDOWS?

        24  A.   EASE OF FINDING.  IT'S CLEAR, I THINK, THAT AT&T, FOR

        25  INSTANCE, WANTED VERY BADLY TO HAVE A POSITION AT LEAST
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         1  LIKE THIS.  AOL WANTED A MORE FAVORABLE POSITION BUT

         2  CONTENTED ITSELF WITH THIS ONE.

         3  Q.   NOW, YOU SAY IT'S VERY CLEAR THAT AT&T WANTED

         4  FAVORABLE POSITION.  ON WHAT DO YOU BASE THAT TESTIMONY?

         5  A.   OKAY.  HANG ON.

         6  Q.   WELL, LET ME REFINE THE QUESTION.

         7           DO YOU BASE IT ON THE TESTIMONY OF BRAD

         8  SILVERBERG?

         9  A.   I WAS COMING TO THAT.  LET ME LOOK JUST TO MAKE SURE.

        10           PARAGRAPH 176.

        11  Q.   176, YES, SIR.

        12  A.   THERE IS ALSO A CONTEMPORANEOUS E-MAIL FROM BRAD

        13  SILVERBERG WITHIN MICROSOFT ON THIS SUBJECT.

        14  Q.   YOU QUOTE THE TESTIMONY OF MR. SILVERBERG, AND THE

        15  TESTIMONY YOU QUOTE STRUCK ME--IT'S FAMILIAR--IT'S EXACTLY

        16  THE SAME TESTIMONY THAT DR. WARREN-BOULTON QUOTED.

        17           ISN'T THIS THE TESTIMONY WHERE MR. SILVERBERG

        18  SAID THAT THE ONLY REASON HE SAID WHAT YOU QUOTE IS

        19  BECAUSE AT&T HAD SAID TO HIM, "WE ARE KING OF THE WORLD,

        20  AND WE ARE NOT GOING TO DO SHIT FOR MICROSOFT"?

        21           MR. LACOVARA:  PARDON MY LANGUAGE, YOUR HONOR.

        22  BY MR. LACOVARA:

        23  Q.   ISN'T THAT WHAT MR. SILVERBERG'S TESTIMONY REALLY

        24  WAS?

        25           AND IF YOU WOULD LIKE ME TO GIVE YOU THE
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         1  DEPOSITION, I WILL BE HAPPY TO.

         2  A.   PERHAPS YOU SHOULD.

         3           THAT IS NOT CONSISTENT--THAT IS NOT CONSISTENT

         4  WITH EXHIBIT 183.

         5  Q.   YOUR QUOTE IN PARAGRAPH 176, SIR, IS PAGE 159 OF

         6  MR. SILVERBERG'S DEPOSITION, AND YOU BEGIN IT WITH THE

         7  WORDS, "YOU WANT TO BE PART OF THE WINDOWS BOX, YOU ARE

         8  GOING TO HAVE TO DO SOMETHING SPECIAL FOR US."

         9  A.   YES.

        10  Q.   AND YOU PICK THAT UP--THAT IS IN THE MIDDLE OF LINE

        11  TEN.

        12  A.   I KNOW.

        13  Q.   AND IT IS PRECEDED BY, "I'M NOT GOING TO DO SHIT FOR

        14  YOU.  I AM THE KING OF WORLD, YOU KNOW, YOU ARE GOING TO

        15  DO THIS FOR ME BECAUSE I'M AT&T, AND SO I LET HIM KNOW

        16  THAT PROBABLY WASN'T GOING TO FLY, SO I TOOK AN EXTREME

        17  POSITION IN THE OTHER DIRECTION WHICH WAS," AND THEN THE

        18  QUOTE BEGINS; IS THAT CORRECT?

        19  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

        20           AND IF YOU WILL LOOK ON THE QUESTION WHETHER AT&T

        21  WANTED IT VERY BADLY, WHICH IS WHAT WE BEGAN BY TALKING

        22  ABOUT, IF YOU WILL LOOK AT PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 183, WHICH

        23  IS ALSO CITED IN THIS PARAGRAPH, YOU WILL FIND AN E-MAIL

        24  FROM MR. SILVERBERG THAT SAYS HE VERY BADLY WANTS IN THE

        25  WINDOWS BOX, AND I TOLD HIM THE ONLY WAY WE COULD EVEN
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         1  CONSIDER AT&T BEING IN THE WINDOWS BOX IS IF AT&T, ET

         2  CETERA, GIVES IE EXCLUSIVE OR VERY PREFERENTIAL TREATMENT,

         3  ALTHOUGH WHAT WE HAVE WITH AOL.

         4  Q.   DO YOU THINK YOU FAIRLY CHARACTERIZED

         5  MR. SILVERBERG'S TESTIMONY, SIR?

         6  A.   WELL, LET ME LOOK AGAIN AT WHAT THE PARAGRAPH SAYS.

         7  Q.   LET ME ASK A MORE PARTICULAR QUESTION.

         8           DO YOU THINK YOU HAVE FAIRLY CHARACTERIZED THE

         9  BUSINESS NEGOTIATIONS BETWEEN MICROSOFT AND AT&T ABOUT

        10  WHICH MR. SILVERBERG WAS, IN FACT, TESTIFYING?

        11  A.   WELL, YES, BASICALLY I DO.

        12  Q.   DOES AT&T HAVE AGREEMENTS TO BE ON ANY DESKTOPS AS

        13  OPPOSED TO BEING IN THE ONLINE SERVICES FOLDER?

        14  A.   WITH MICROSOFT OR WITH ANYBODY?

        15  Q.   LET ME ASK YOU A QUESTION:  DOES ANY ISP HAVE AN

        16  AGREEMENT WITH MICROSOFT TO BE ON THE WINDOWS DESKTOP?

        17  A.   I DON'T THINK SO.

        18  Q.   IN FACT, ONLINE SERVICES, AT LEAST, INCLUDING AOL,

        19  HAVE LOTS OF AGREEMENTS WITH OEM'S TO BE ON THE DESKTOP;

        20  CORRECT?

        21  A.   YES.

        22  Q.   OKAY.  DID YOU THINK IT WAS APPROPRIATE IN DOING YOUR

        23  ANALYSIS OF THE POWER OF PLACEMENT IN THE ONLINE SERVICES

        24  FOLDER TO SEE HOW MUCH DISTRIBUTION ACTUALLY CAME OUT OF

        25  THAT FOLDER?  OR TO PUT IT ANOTHER WAY, WHETHER THE
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         1  PLACEMENT WAS AS VALUABLE AS AT&T OR MICROSOFT MAY HAVE

         2  BEEN INDICATING IN THEIR NEGOTIATIONS?

         3  A.   WELL, I KNOW SOME THINGS ABOUT THAT, YES?

         4  Q.   THE QUESTION WAS:  DID YOU DO THAT ANALYSIS PRIOR TO

         5  FILING YOUR WRITTEN DIRECT TESTIMONY?

         6  A.   AND MY ANSWER IS YES, I KNOW SOME THINGS ABOUT THAT.

         7  Q.   TELL ME WHAT YOU KNEW AS OF THE DATE YOU FILED YOUR

         8  DIRECT TESTIMONY.

         9  A.   IF I RECALL CORRECTLY, AOL HAD AGREEMENTS WITH

        10  VARIOUS OEM'S TO BE ON--TO BE ON THEIR DESKTOP, AND THEY

        11  PAID THE OEM'S FOR THAT.  WHEN THE AOL AGREEMENT BETWEEN

        12  MICROSOFT AND AOL WAS SIGNED, AFTER THAT THEY STOPPED

        13  PAYING THE OEM'S NEARLY AS MUCH MONEY.  THAT SUGGESTS IT

        14  WAS VALUABLE.

        15  Q.   OKAY.  THE QUESTION TO YOU, SIR, WAS DISTRIBUTION.

        16  THE QUESTION WAS, DID YOU THINK IT WAS IMPORTANT TO KNOW

        17  HOW MUCH DISTRIBUTION, IN FACT, CAME FROM THIS

        18  VALUABLE--THIS SUPPOSEDLY VALUABLE PLACEMENT?  WASN'T HOW

        19  MUCH THEY PAID FOR.

        20  A.   IT'S HOW MUCH THEY PAID THAT MAKES IT VALUABLE.

        21  Q.   I SEE.  AND THE AMOUNT OF DISTRIBUTION OR NEW

        22  SUBSCRIBERS YOU WOULDN'T THINK IS AS IMPORTANT AS HOW MUCH

        23  THEY PAID?

        24  A.   WELL, IT'S NOT THAT I THINK IS UNIMPORTANT, BUT WHAT

        25  MAKES SOMETHING VALUABLE IS WHETHER SOMEBODY IS WILLING TO
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         1  PAY FOR IT IN SOME FORM.

         2  Q.   CAN YOU ANSWER THE QUESTION I HAVE ASKED NOW THREE

         3  TIMES?

         4  A.   I DO NOT KNOW HOW MANY SUBSCRIBERS WERE, AS IT WERE,

         5  DISTRIBUTED THROUGH AOL.

         6  Q.   HOW MANY ISP'S HAD AGREEMENTS WITH MICROSOFT BE

         7  PLACED EITHER IN THE ONLINE SERVICES FOLDER OR THE

         8  INTERNET CONNECTION WIZARD?

         9  A.   I'M NOT SURE ABOUT THIS.  MY MEMORY SAYS 12.

        10  Q.   OKAY.  AND ARE THOSE THE--THAT WAS FOR WINDOWS 95 OR

        11  WINDOWS 98, OR IT WAS YOUR RECOLLECTION THAT IT WAS FOR

        12  BOTH?

        13  A.   I DON'T REMEMBER.

        14  Q.   OKAY.  IS THERE A DOCUMENT YOU CAN LOOK AT THAT WOULD

        15  GIVE YOU THAT--

        16  A.   I'M SURE THERE IS.  THE QUESTION IS IF I CAN FIND

        17  ONE.

        18  Q.   I HAVE ALMOST GOTTEN TO THE END OF THAT QUESTION,

        19  WHICH IS, I COULD GIVE THAT YOU INFORMATION READILY.

        20  A.   WELL, LET ME GIVE IT A TRY.  I'M NOT SURE.

        21           (PAUSE.)

        22  A.   OKAY.  TWELVE IS, I BELIEVE, THE CORRECT NUMBER FOR

        23  WINDOWS 95.  THAT FAR I FOUND THE DOCUMENT.

        24  Q.   OKAY.  AND IN FACT, 12 IS THE NUMBER THAT ULTIMATELY

        25  WENT INTO THE BOX; RIGHT?  THERE WERE ORIGINALLY MORE THAN
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         1  12 AGREEMENTS; ISN'T THAT CORRECT?

         2  A.   I DON'T KNOW.

         3  Q.   BUT ISN'T IT CORRECT THAT SOME ISP'S NEVER DID THE

         4  PAPERWORK?  THEY ESSENTIALLY REACHED A DEAL WITH MICROSOFT

         5  BUT NEVER COMPLETED THE DEAL AND NEVER APPEARED ON THE

         6  INTERNET CONNECTION WIZARD?

         7  A.   I DON'T KNOW WHETHER THAT'S TRUE OR NOT.

         8  Q.   WOULD YOU WANT TO KNOW A FACT LIKE THAT IN ASSESSING

         9  THE VALUE OF THE PLACEMENT?

        10  A.   MARGINALLY.

        11           DO YOU WANT ME TO STILL--

        12  Q.   LET ME ASK YOU ANOTHER QUESTION:  DID YOU CONSIDER IT

        13  IMPORTANT IN YOUR ANALYSIS TO SEE IF THE MIX OF ISP'S

        14  CHANGED?

        15  A.   FROM WHAT TO WHAT?

        16  Q.   FROM WINDOWS 95 TO WINDOWS 98.

        17  A.   NO.

        18  Q.   WOULDN'T YOU WANT TO KNOW THAT?  IF THAT WAS SO

        19  VALUABLE, WOULDN'T YOU EXPECT THE SAME FIRMS TO TRY TO

        20  STAY IN UNTIL THE NEXT RELEASE?

        21  A.   YOU MIGHT, BUT SINCE ONE OF THE THINGS THAT MAKES IT

        22  VALUABLE IS ITS SCARCITY, THERE MIGHT VERY WELL BE CHANGES

        23  IN WHO APPEARS.

        24  Q.   WELL, DID YOU LOOK TO SEE IF THE TERMS GOT TO BE

        25  RESTRICTIVE?  PRESUMABLY, IF IT WERE VALUABLE AND SCARCE,
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         1  MICROSOFT WOULD BE ABLE TO EXTRACT MORE RESTRICTIVE TERMS

         2  ON THE SECOND ROUND OF THE WINDOWS 98 NEGOTIATIONS;

         3  CORRECT?

         4  A.   POSSIBLY.

         5  Q.   WELL, WOULDN'T YOU WANT TO SEE WHETHER THAT, IN FACT,

         6  HAPPENED?

         7  A.   WELL, HANG ON.  BY THE TIME WINDOWS 1998 WAS

         8  RELEASED, THIS CASE HAD BEEN FILED.  IN APRIL OF LAST

         9  YEAR, MICROSOFT ISSUED A LETTER TO VARIOUS ISP'S SAYING IT

        10  WAS NOT GOING TO ENFORCE SOME OF THE RESTRICTIVE

        11  PROVISIONS.  SO, IN THAT SENSE, I ASSUME IT IS THE CASE

        12  THAT AGREEMENTS FOR WINDOWS 98 MAY HAVE BEEN LESS

        13  RESTRICTIVE.

        14  Q.   AND IN FACT, THEY ARE LESS RESTRICTIVE EVEN THOUGH

        15  YOUR TESTIMONY DOESN'T INDICATE THAT, SPECIFICALLY IN

        16  PARAGRAPH 192, WHERE YOU PURPORT TO SUMMARIZE OR PURPORT

        17  TO TALK ABOUT THE EFFECTS OF THE AGREEMENTS.

        18           LET ME ASK YOU WHAT YOU KNOW ABOUT WINDOWS 98

        19  REFERRAL SERVER AGREEMENTS.

        20  A.   WAS THAT LAST THING JUST A COMMENT OR--

        21  Q.   I WILL WITHDRAW IT.  IT'S EASIER TO ASK THIS

        22  QUESTION:  FOR WINDOWS 98, DO THE REFERRAL SERVER

        23  AGREEMENTS HAVE ANY MINIMUM DISTRIBUTION REQUIREMENTS?

        24  A.   PROBABLY NOT.

        25  Q.   NOW, IN THE WINDOWS 95 WORLD, WHICH IS THE WORLD YOU
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         1  ARE DESCRIBING IN YOUR TESTIMONY, DID YOU CHECK TO SEE

         2  WHETHER THE FIRMS THAT HAD MINIMUM DISTRIBUTION

         3  REQUIREMENTS ACTUALLY HONORED THOSE REQUIREMENTS?

         4  A.   I'M AWARE OF THE FACT THAT MICROSOFT SAYS THAT THEY

         5  DID NOT ALL HONOR THEM.

         6  Q.   DID YOU CHECK TO SEE WHETHER THIS ASSERTION OR WHAT

         7  MICROSOFT SAID, TO USE YOUR WORDS, WAS CORRECT?

         8  A.   NO, I ASSUME IT IS CORRECT.

         9  Q.   OKAY.  ARE YOU AWARE THAT THERE WAS VARIATION IN THE

        10  AGREEMENTS IN THAT TWO OF THEM, AT LEAST NETCOM AND

        11  SPRINT, WERE ABLE TO DISTRIBUTE JUST AS MANY COPIES OF

        12  NETSCAPE'S WEB-BROWSING SOFTWARE AS MICROSOFT'S

        13  WEB-BROWSING SOFTWARE?

        14  A.   WELL, I'M AWARE THAT THERE IS VARIATION IN THE

        15  AGREEMENT.  NOW, IF YOU WANT TO ASK ME SPECIFICALLY ABOUT

        16  NETCOM AND SPRINT, I WOULD HAVE TO LOOK IT UP.

        17  Q.   DO YOU HAVE THAT DATA?

        18  A.   YEAH, I PROBABLY DO.

        19  Q.   OKAY.  YOU HAD THE DATA AVAILABLE TO YOU AT THE TIME

        20  YOU FILED YOUR TESTIMONY?

        21  A.   I THINK SO.

        22  Q.   IS THERE SOME REASON YOU CHOSE NOT TO INCLUDE THE

        23  ACTUAL DISTRIBUTION ANALYSIS, OR AN ACTUAL DISTRIBUTION

        24  ANALYSIS, IN YOUR TESTIMONY?

        25  A.   MAYBE WE ARE NOT UNDERSTANDING EACH OTHER.
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         1  Q.   WELL, LET ME ASK YOU THIS QUESTION:  IF YOU'RE DOING

         2  AN ANALYSIS OF THE EFFECT OF A PARTICULAR AGREEMENT,

         3  WOULDN'T--THESE AGREEMENTS--WOULDN'T THE AMOUNT OF

         4  DISTRIBUTION OF MICROSOFT VERSUS NETSCAPE WEB-BROWSING

         5  SOFTWARE BE A CONSIDERATION THAT YOU THINK YOU SHOULD TAKE

         6  INTO ACCOUNT?

         7  A.   SURE.

         8  Q.   AND DID YOU DO THAT ANALYSIS?

         9  A.   YES, I KNOW THAT MICROSOFT PLACED RESTRICTIONS ON THE

        10  AMOUNT OF DISTRIBUTION, AND I KNOW THAT IN THIS

        11  AGREEMENT--THESE AGREEMENTS, NETSCAPE HAS TO BE THE

        12  DEFAULT BROWSER.  NOW, IF YOU WANT TO KNOW--I DO KNOW, OR

        13  AT LEAST I THINK IT'S TRUE, THAT THE MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS,

        14  TO THE EXTENT THERE WERE MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS, WERE

        15  DIFFERENT FOR DIFFERENT AGREEMENTS, AND IF YOU WANT ME TO

        16  LOOK UP HOW THAT DIFFERED, I COULD LOOK IT UP.

        17  Q.   DID YOU LOOK TO SEE, PRIOR TO FILING YOUR TESTIMONY

        18  OR PRIOR TO THE BEGINNING OF YOUR CROSS-EXAMINATION, SIR,

        19  WHETHER ANY OF THE 12 FIRMS WITH WHICH MICROSOFT HAD

        20  AGREEMENTS DISTRIBUTED MORE COPIES OF NETSCAPE'S SOFTWARE

        21  THAN MICROSOFT'S SOFTWARE?

        22  A.   I WOULD VERY MUCH DOUBT THAT THAT IS TRUE OR THAT

        23  IT'S TRUE OF MANY OF THEM.

        24  Q.   DID YOU CHECK TO SEE WHETHER IT WAS TRUE, IS THE

        25  QUESTION I ASKED?
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         1  A.   NO.  I BELIEVE WE LOOKED AT THE BIGGEST ONES.  I

         2  DON'T BELIEVE WE LOOKED AT ALL OF THEM.

         3  Q.   OKAY.  WHICH OF THE FIRMS WITH WHICH MICROSOFT HAD

         4  ISP AGREEMENTS WERE ALSO FEATURED IN NETSCAPE'S REFERRAL

         5  SERVER?

         6  A.   I DON'T KNOW.

         7  Q.   OKAY.  DID YOU REGARD THAT AS SOMETHING IMPORTANT

         8  WHEN YOU WERE ANALYZING THE COMPETITIVE EFFECTS OF THIS?

         9  A.   NO.

        10  Q.   YOU ALSO TALK IN YOUR TESTIMONY, STARTING AT

        11  PARAGRAPH 193, ABOUT ICP AGREEMENTS.  HOW MANY SUCH

        12  AGREEMENTS WERE THERE?

        13  A.   HOW MANY WERE THERE?

        14  Q.   HOW MANY WERE THERE.

        15           AND IF YOU'RE LOOKING AT BACKUP MATERIAL, THE

        16  NEXT QUESTION IS:  HOW MANY WERE STILL IN EFFECT ON THE

        17  DAY YOU SUBMITTED YOUR WRITTEN DIRECT TESTIMONY?

        18  A.   OKAY.  I CAN ANSWER THE SECOND QUESTION WITHOUT

        19  LOOKING, BUT TO ANSWER THE FIRST QUESTION I WOULD HAVE TO

        20  LOOK.

        21           THERE WERE AT LEAST TEN.  WHETHER THERE WERE MORE

        22  THAN TEN, I DON'T KNOW.

        23  Q.   AND HOW MANY OF THOSE TEN, AS YOU UNDERSTAND THERE TO

        24  BE TEN, HOW MANY REMAINED IN EFFECT AS OF THE DAY ON WHICH

        25  YOU SIGNED YOUR TESTIMONY?
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         1  A.   WELL, MICROSOFT BASICALLY FOUND THAT THE CHANNEL BAR

         2  WAS NOT REMARKABLY SUCCESSFUL, AND DID NOT, I BELIEVE,

         3  RENEW THESE AGREEMENTS, FOR THE MOST PART.  I DON'T KNOW

         4  WHETHER ANY OF THEM REMAINED IN EFFECT.  MOST OF THEM

         5  DON'T.

         6  Q.   WHAT WERE THE TERMS OF THE AGREEMENTS INITIALLY?

         7  A.   WELL, I DON'T KNOW SPECIFICALLY.  MY ASSUMPTION,

         8  BASED ON LOOKING AT OTHER MICROSOFT AGREEMENTS AND ON SOME

         9  MEMORY, IS PROBABLY A YEAR.

        10  Q.   DID YOU STUDY WHETHER THE EXISTENCE OF THE AGREEMENTS

        11  BETWEEN MICROSOFT AND VARIOUS ICP'S INCREASED OVERALL

        12  TRAFFIC TO SOME OF THE WEB SITES WITH WHICH MICROSOFT HAD

        13  AGREEMENTS?

        14  A.   NO.

        15  Q.   DID YOU SEE WHETHER IT CHANGED THE MIX OF TRAFFIC

        16  THAT CAME FROM MICROSOFT WEB-BROWSING SOFTWARE VERSUS

        17  NETSCAPE OR ANY OTHER WEB-BROWSING SOFTWARE?

        18  A.   I'M NOT SURE THAT THAT'S POSSIBLE TO DO.

        19  Q.   OKAY.  DID YOU SEE IF THAT SORT OF DATA WERE

        20  AVAILABLE?

        21  A.   WELL, IF I UNDERSTOOD YOU, I DON'T THINK IT IS.

        22  Q.   CAN YOU DO IT FROM THE ADKNOWLEDGE DATA?

        23  A.   I DON'T THINK SO.

        24  Q.   OKAY.  DID YOU EXAMINE WHETHER ANY OF THE ENTITIES

        25  WITH WHICH MICROSOFT HAD ICP AGREEMENTS WERE DISTRIBUTORS
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         1  OF SOFTWARE, SPECIFICALLY OF WEB-BROWSING SOFTWARE?

         2  A.   NO, I DON'T THINK I DID.

         3  Q.   SO, YOU DO NOT KNOW WHETHER ANY OF THE PARTNERS OF

         4  MICROSOFT DISTRIBUTED NETSCAPE WEB-BROWSING SOFTWARE,

         5  INDEED, DISTRIBUTED LOTS MORE NETSCAPE SOFTWARE THAN THEY

         6  EVER DISTRIBUTED MICROSOFT SOFTWARE?

         7  A.   BEFORE OR DURING THEIR AGREEMENT?

         8  Q.   DURING THE PENDENCY OF THEIR AGREEMENT.

         9  A.   NO, I DON'T KNOW.

        10  Q.   LET ME ASK YOU A FEW QUESTIONS ABOUT JAVA AND SORT OF

        11  TAKE UP THE SUBJECT OF JAVA STARTING AT PARAGRAPH 200 OF

        12  YOUR TESTIMONY.

        13           NOW, IS IT CORRECT, DR. FISHER, THAT THE OPINIONS

        14  YOU EXPRESS IN YOUR WRITTEN DIRECT TESTIMONY ON THE

        15  SUBJECT OF JAVA AND JAVA TECHNOLOGIES ARE ESSENTIALLY THE

        16  SAME AS THOSE YOU EXPRESSED IN YOUR DECLARATION IN MAY AND

        17  CERTAINLY IN YOUR EXPERT REPORT THAT YOU FILED IN

        18  SEPTEMBER--EXCUSE ME--SUBMITTED TO MICROSOFT IN SEPTEMBER?

        19  A.   WELL, I'M SURE THEY'RE NOT INCONSISTENT.  I KNOW A

        20  GREAT DEAL MORE ABOUT THE SUBJECT NOW THAN I DID THEN.

        21  Q.   AND IN FACT, ON THE DAY ON WHICH I TOOK YOUR

        22  DEPOSITION, IT WAS ABOUT TWO WEEKS BEFORE YOU FILED YOUR

        23  TESTIMONY?

        24  A.   ROUGHLY.

        25  Q.   YOU DIDN'T KNOW WHAT JAVA RUNTIME WAS?
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         1  A.   CORRECT.

         2  Q.   YOU DIDN'T KNOW WHAT A JAVA VIRTUAL MACHINE WAS?

         3  A.   I DON'T THINK THAT'S RIGHT, BUT I CERTAINLY--THERE

         4  WAS CERTAINLY A LOT ABOUT JAVA I DID NOT KNOW.

         5  Q.   OKAY.  LET ME ASK YOU TO TAKE A LOOK AT YOUR

         6  DEPOSITION, PLEASE, IF WE HAVE A COPY.  SPECIFICALLY, TAKE

         7  A LOOK AT PAGE 93, QUESTION ON LINE SEVEN, (READING):

         8                "QUESTION:  DO YOU KNOW WHAT A JAVA VIRTUAL

         9           MACHINE IS?

        10                ANSWER:  I HAVE SOME KNOWLEDGE OF THAT.

        11                QUESTION:  CAN YOU TELL ME WHAT YOUR

        12           KNOWLEDGE IS?

        13                ANSWER:  A JAVA VIRTUAL MACHINE IS, I

        14           BELIEVE, AN APPLICATION WRITTEN IN JAVA THAT WILL

        15           RUN--THAT MEANS IT WILL RUN TYPICALLY INDEPENDENT

        16           OF THE OPERATING SYSTEM."

        17  A.   YEAH, THAT'S PLAINLY WRONG.

        18  Q.   OKAY.  NOW, DO YOU HAVE AN UNDERSTANDING AS TO

        19  WHETHER JAVA IS THE FIRST PROGRAMMING LANGUAGE TO MAKE THE

        20  CLAIM THAT IT CAN MAKE CROSS-PLATFORM APPLICATION

        21  DEVELOPMENT POSSIBLE?

        22  A.   WELL, TAKING WHAT YOU'RE ASKING ME VERY GENERALLY,

        23  YES, I DO KNOW.

        24  Q.   YOU DO KNOW?

        25  A.   UMM-HMM.

                                                           24

         1  Q.   AND YOU BELIEVE JAVA IS THE FIRST LANGUAGE TO MAKE

         2  SUCH A CLAIM?

         3  A.   NO, I DON'T.

         4  Q.   WHICH OTHER LANGUAGES HAVE CLAIMED THAT THEY, TOO,

         5  COULD BE THE PROMISED LAND OF CROSS-PLATFORM DEVELOPMENT?

         6  A.   WELL, I'M THINKING BACK TO SOMETHING THAT'S VERY OLD.

         7  THAT'S WHY I SAID GENERALLY.  THAT'S PROBABLY NOT WHAT

         8  YOU'RE THINKING OF.

         9  Q.   WHAT ARE YOU THINKING BACK TO?

        10  A.   IN AT LEAST AS FAR BACK AS 1964, WHEN IBM DEVELOPED

        11  THE SYSTEM 360, THERE WERE IN EXISTENCE PROGRAMS KNOWN AS

        12  "EMULATORS" WHICH ATTEMPTED TO ALLOW YOU TO WRITE A

        13  PROGRAM--HOW SHALL I PUT IT?  IT ATTEMPTED TO TAKE--IT

        14  ATTEMPTED TO MAKE ONE MACHINE PRETEND IT WAS ANOTHER

        15  MACHINE, IS THE EASIEST WAY TO SAY IT, TO EMULATE ANOTHER

        16  MACHINE.  AND IN THAT SENSE, YOU COULD WRITE A PROGRAM

        17  THAT COULD RUN EITHER ON THE MACHINE THAT WAS BEING

        18  EMULATED OR ON THE MACHINE THAT WAS DOING THE EMULATING,

        19  AND THAT WOULD BE A CROSS-PLATFORM PROGRAM.  THEY WEREN'T

        20  VERY GOOD.

        21  Q.   I WAS ASKING YOU ABOUT PROGRAMMING LANGUAGES, NOT

        22  SOFTWARE ITSELF.

        23           DO YOU HAVE ANY KNOWLEDGE OF OTHER PROGRAMMING

        24  LANGUAGES THAT MADE THIS CLAIM?

        25  A.   JAVA ONLY MAKES THAT CLAIM TOGETHER WITH, AS IT WERE,
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         1  THE JAVA EQUIPMENT THAT DOES THIS.

         2  Q.   THAT'S YOUR UNDERSTANDING?  THAT'S NOT THE LANGUAGE

         3  ITSELF?

         4  A.   NO, IT'S NOT THE LANGUAGE ITSELF.  IT'S TOGETHER WITH

         5  THE JAVA VIRTUAL MACHINES AND THE CLASS LIBRARIES AND SO

         6  ON.  THAT'S THE WAY IT'S ACCOMPLISHED.

         7  Q.   CAN YOU TELL ME WHAT JDIRECT IS.

         8  A.   JDIRECT IS MICROSOFT'S IMPLEMENTATION OF JAVA.

         9  Q.   DO YOU BELIEVE THAT JDIRECT IS A LANGUAGE, A

        10  PROGRAMMING VARIANT OF JAVA?

        11  A.   MICROSOFT MAKES ITS OWN JVM'S, AND JDIRECT IS THE

        12  LANGUAGE, I BELIEVE, IN WHICH YOU WOULD PROGRAM TO RUN ON

        13  MICROSOFT JVM'S.  NOW, I DON'T KNOW WHETHER MICROSOFT USES

        14  THE WORD JDIRECT TO INCLUDE THE JVM OR NOT.

        15  Q.   IS IT NOT CORRECT, SIR, THAT JDIRECT IS NOT A

        16  LANGUAGE, BUT AN INTERFACE?  IT'S A PART OF WINDOWS?  IT'S

        17  NOT A LANGUAGE.  IS THAT CONSISTENT WITH YOUR

        18  UNDERSTANDING?

        19  A.   IT'S CONSISTENT WITH MY UNDERSTANDING THAT WE ARE

        20  TALKING ABOUT, AS I SAID, MICROSOFT'S IMPLEMENTATION OF

        21  JAVA, AND BY THAT I MEAN THE JAVA SYSTEM.

        22  Q.   LOOK AT PARAGRAPH 209, PLEASE.  "MICROSOFT USED ITS

        23  MONOPOLY POWERS OVER PC OPERATING SYSTEMS TO INDUCE AND

        24  REQUIRE INDUSTRY PARTICIPANTS TO ACCEPT JDIRECT INSTEAD OF

        25  JAVA."
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         1           JAVA IS A PROGRAMMING LANGUAGE; CORRECT?

         2  A.   JAVA IS USED IN SEVERAL SENSES.

         3  Q.   OKAY.  AND TELL ME THE SENSE IN WHICH YOU ARE USING

         4  IT HERE.

         5  A.   I MEAN THE--I DON'T KNOW QUITE HOW TO DESCRIBE IT.

         6  THE JAVA SYSTEM, WHICH INCLUDES THE LANGUAGE, THE JVM'S,

         7  AND THE REST OF THE RUNTIME ENVIRONMENT.

         8  Q.   NOW, WHEN YOU WERE COMING TO YOUR OPINIONS ABOUT WHAT

         9  MICROSOFT WAS DOING WITH APPLICATIONS DEVELOPERS IN THE

        10  JAVA AREA, DID YOU ASK ANYBODY ABOUT THE ACTUAL

        11  PROGRAMMING TOOLS THAT MICROSOFT PROVIDES SO PEOPLE CAN

        12  WRITE APPLICATIONS?

        13  A.   ACTUALLY, I DO KNOW ABOUT THAT, YES.

        14  Q.   AND WHAT DO YOU KNOW ABOUT THE CHOICES THAT

        15  APPLICATION DEVELOPERS CAN MAKE WHEN THEY WRITE

        16  JAVA-WRITTEN APPLICATIONS FOR WINDOWS?

        17  A.   WELL--OKAY.  FIRST PLACE, THEY CAN WRITE JAVA

        18  APPLICATIONS FOR WINDOWS USING SOMEBODY ELSE'S JVM, BUT I

        19  TAKE IT YOU'RE ASKING ME ABOUT WHAT HAPPENS IF THEY USE

        20  MICROSOFT'S JVM.

        21  Q.   YES.

        22  A.   DO YOU WANT ME TO TALK SPECIFICALLY ABOUT THE TOOLS?

        23  Q.   LET ME ASK YOU A QUESTION.

        24  A.   YOU DID.  I'M TRYING TO ORGANIZE THE ANSWER.

        25  Q.   I THOUGHT YOU WERE FINISHED WITH YOUR ANSWER.
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         1  A.   OH, HEAVENS, NO.  I'M NOT NEARLY FINISHED WITH THIS

         2  ANSWER.  I JUST WANT TO KNOW HOW YOU WOULD LIKE ME TO

         3  ORGANIZE IT.

         4  Q.   WHICHEVER WAY IT MAKES MOST SENSE TO YOU.

         5  A.   LET ME TELL YOU, MORE OR LESS, EVERYTHING I KNOW

         6  ABOUT THIS SUBJECT, OR TRY TO.

         7           MY UNDERSTANDING IS THAT JAVA, IN ITS ORIGINAL

         8  FORM AS PRODUCED BY SUN, CONTAINS CERTAIN--I DON'T KNOW

         9  WHAT TO CALL IT--ITEMS OR FACILITIES OF WHICH THE ONE THAT

        10  IS MOST IMPORTANT FOR PURPOSES OF THIS ANSWER IS SOME

        11  THINGS CALLED JNI'S, JAVA NATIVE INTERFACE.  THAT PERMITS

        12  THE DEVELOPER TO, IN WRITING HIS OR HER CODE, TO CALL UPON

        13  THE, I COULD SAY, NATIVE OR SAY PARTICULAR SERVICES OF THE

        14  UNDERLYING OPERATING SYSTEM.  AND IT DOES SO IN A WAY THAT

        15  THE CODE WRITTEN TO THE JNI IS, AS IT WERE, HIVED OFF, SO

        16  THAT IF YOU WANT TO WRITE FOR A JAVA VIRTUAL MACHINE FOR A

        17  DIFFERENT UNDERLYING PLATFORM, IT IS RELATIVELY EASY TO

        18  PORT IT.  I SUPPOSE IT IS TRUE THAT IN THE ULTIMATE DREAM

        19  OF THE JAVAWORLD YOU WOULDN'T HAVE THESE, BUT AT THE

        20  MOMENT YOU DO.

        21           MICROSOFT, IN JDIRECT, DOES NOT SUPPORT JNI'S.

        22  IT REPLACES THEM WITH INTERFACES CALLED "RNI'S."  I'M

        23  AFRAID I DON'T KNOW WHAT RNI STANDS FOR, OR AT LEAST I

        24  DON'T KNOW WHAT THE "R" STANDS FOR.  A DEVELOPER WHO

        25  WRITES IN PURE JAVA, IF I MAY PUT IT THAT WAY, AND CALLS
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         1  ON JNI'S, UNLESS THE DEVELOPER IS VERY CAREFUL, WILL

         2  DISCOVER THAT THE PROGRAM WILL NOT RUN ON MICROSOFT'S JVM

         3  FOR WINDOWS.

         4           ON THE OTHER HAND, IF THE PROGRAMMER THEN ADJUSTS

         5  ITS PROGRAM OR INITIALLY ADJUSTS THE PROGRAM TO CALL UPON

         6  RNI'S RATHER THAN JNI'S, THEN THE PROGRAM WILL RUN ON

         7  WINDOWS, BUT IT WON'T RUN ON ANYTHING ELSE.

         8           THERE IS ANOTHER FACILITY THAT MICROSOFT DOES NOT

         9  SUPPORT CALLED RMI, BUT THAT IS RELATIVELY LESS IMPORTANT.

        10           IN ADDITION, MICROSOFT PROVIDES CERTAIN

        11  DEVELOPMENT TOOLS FOR PROGRAMMERS WRITING IN JAVA.  THESE

        12  ARE PROVIDED, I BELIEVE, IN SOMETHING CALLED VISUAL

        13  J-PLUS-PLUS.  I HAVE A FAMILIARITY WITH SUCH TOOLS THROUGH

        14  THEIR COUSIN VISUAL BASIC, BUT I COULD DESCRIBE THEM BY

        15  SAYING, AS AN EXAMPLE, IF YOU WANT TO PUT A BUTTON ON A

        16  MENU, YOU DON'T HAVE TO WRITE A LOT OF CODE TO DO IT.

        17  THIS IS SOMETHING QUITE NICE, ACTUALLY, WHICH ENABLES YOU

        18  TO DESIGN THE BUTTONS, SAY WHERE YOU WANT IT, AND THE

        19  CODE, AS IT WERE, WOULD BE WRITTEN FOR YOU.

        20           THE PROBLEM IS, IF YOU DO THIS IN VISUAL

        21  J-PLUS-PLUS, AT LEAST UNTIL QUITE RECENTLY, YOU WOULD NOT

        22  BE WARNED OF A RATHER SALIENT FACT, WHICH IS, IF YOU DO

        23  THAT, YOU WOULD BE WRITING IN A WAY THAT WOULD MAKE

        24  YOUR--THE PROGRAM YOU WERE DEVELOPING RUNNABLE OKAY ON

        25  MICROSOFT'S JVM FOR WINDOWS, BUT IT WOULD NOT PERMIT YOU
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         1  TO PORT THE PROGRAM EASILY TO OTHER APPLICATIONS.

         2  Q.   ARE YOU FINISHED?

         3  A.   NOT TO OTHER APPLICATIONS.

         4  Q.   OTHER PLATFORMS?

         5  A.   OTHER PLATFORMS, THANK YOU.

         6           YES, I AM FINISHED.

         7  Q.   CAN I ASK YOU WHETHER IT IS YOUR UNDERSTANDING THAT

         8  SPEAKING OF VISUAL J-PLUS-PLUS AS YOU JUST DID--LET ME

         9  JUST ASK THE QUESTION--DO YOU KNOW WHAT VISUAL J-PLUS-PLUS

        10  WAS AT THE TIME YOU FILED YOUR TESTIMONY?

        11  A.   NO.

        12  Q.   I SEE.  DID YOU KNOW WHAT RMI OR RNI WAS AT THE TIME

        13  YOU FILED YOUR TESTIMONY?

        14  A.   I CERTAINLY DIDN'T KNOW WHAT RMI WAS.  I CAN'T

        15  REMEMBER NOW WHETHER I KNEW WHAT RNI'S--RNI WAS, BUT I

        16  CERTAINLY KNEW, IN GENERAL, ABOUT THE TOPIC.

        17  Q.   SO, GIVEN THE KNOWLEDGE YOU HAVE ACQUIRED SINCE YOU

        18  CAME TO THE OPINIONS YOU EXPRESSED IN YOUR TESTIMONY ON

        19  VISUAL J-PLUS-PLUS IN PARTICULAR, ISN'T IT CORRECT, SIR,

        20  THAT IN EVERY VERSION OF VISUAL J-PLUS-PLUS, SOFTWARE

        21  DEVELOPERS ARE GIVEN A CHOICE OF WRITING IN WHAT YOU WOULD

        22  CALL PURE JAVA OR IN A MICROSOFT IMPLEMENTATION OF THAT

        23  LANGUAGE?

        24  A.   BUT IT IS MY UNDERSTANDING--

        25  Q.   CAN YOU ANSWER YES OR NO, AND THEN IF YOU NEED TO
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         1  EXPLAIN, PLEASE DO.

         2  A.   I DON'T KNOW WHETHER THAT IS TRUE OR NOT, BUT IT IS,

         3  NEVERTHELESS, MY UNDERSTANDING THAT THEY'RE NOT WARNED

         4  WHAT THE PROBLEM IS GOING TO BE.

         5  Q.   AND DO YOU BELIEVE SOFTWARE DEVELOPERS WHO ARE

         6  WRITING APPLICATIONS WOULD BE UNABLE TO TELL WHAT LANGUAGE

         7  THEY WERE WRITING IN WITH THESE TOOLS?

         8  A.   OH, YES, I CERTAINLY DO.  I HAVE USED VISUAL BASIC,

         9  AND I COULD TELL YOU, YOU DO NOT KNOW WHAT THE UNDERLYING

        10  LANGUAGE CODE IS GOING TO TURN OUT TO BE.  THAT'S THE

        11  POINT.

        12  Q.   MAYBE THE POINT IS WHAT VISUAL J-PLUS-PLUS SAYS.

        13  HAVE YOU EVER SEEN THAT?

        14  A.   NO.

        15  Q.   NOW, IS IT YOUR UNDERSTANDING THAT AN APPLICATION OR

        16  APPLET WRITTEN IN WHAT YOU CALL 100 PERCENT PURE JAVA WILL

        17  RUN ON THE WINDOWS VIRTUAL MACHINE--EXCUSE ME--INTERNET

        18  EXPLORER JVM?

        19  A.   MY UNDERSTANDING IS THAT IT WILL, IF DOES NOT CALL ON

        20  JNI'S OR WHAT THE OTHER THING IS, RMI'S.

        21  Q.   IS IT NOT CORRECT, SIR, THAT SUN ANTICIPATED AT THE

        22  TIME IT DEVELOPED THE JAVA PROGRAMMING LANGUAGE THAT

        23  PLATFORM DEVELOPERS WOULD WORK TO CUSTOMIZE THE

        24  IMPLEMENTATION OF JAVA ON THEIR VARIOUS PLATFORMS?

        25  A.   I'M NOT SURE.  IT MAY VERY WELL BE TRUE.  THAT'S A
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         1  REASON FOR PROVIDING JNI'S.

         2  Q.   ISN'T IT TRUE THAT EVERY SINGLE HIGH-LEVEL

         3  PROGRAMMING LANGUAGE THAT'S BEEN DEVELOPED IN THE LAST

         4  FOUR YEARS HAS, OVER TIME, BEEN CUSTOMIZED OR ITS

         5  IMPLEMENTATION CHANGED FOR DIFFERENT PLATFORMS?

         6  A.   YES, BUT THAT IS THE POINT.  THAT LED TO THE PROBLEM

         7  THAT THE JAVA SYSTEM IS SUPPOSED TO TRY TO CORRECT.

         8  Q.   BUT ISN'T THAT ALSO TRUE OF OTHER LANGUAGES THAT WERE

         9  DESIGNED AS JAVA TO BE CROSS-PLATFORMED?

        10  A.   WELL, I DON'T KNOW SPECIFICALLY ABOUT THAT, NO.

        11  Q.   DO YOU KNOW WHO JAMES GOSLING IS?

        12  A.   YES.

        13  Q.   AND YOU UNDERSTAND HIM TO BE, IN LAYPERSON'S

        14  PARLANCE, THE FATHER OF THE JAVA LANGUAGE; CORRECT?

        15  A.   SOUNDS GOOD TO ME.

        16  Q.   DID YOU READ HIS TESTIMONY TO THIS COURT?

        17  A.   MORE THAN ONCE.

        18  Q.   OKAY.  HIS CROSS-EXAMINATION AS WELL?

        19  A.   OH, YES.

        20           MR. LACOVARA:  CAN I ASK THAT THE WITNESS BE

        21  SHOWN MR. GOSLING'S TESTIMONY FROM DECEMBER 3RD IN THE

        22  AFTERNOON SESSION.

        23  BY MR. LACOVARA:

        24  Q.   AND IF YOU COULD TAKE A LOOK AT PAGES 54 THROUGH 56,

        25  DR. FISHER.
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         1           (WITNESS REVIEWS DOCUMENT.)

         2  A.   YES.

         3  Q.   NOW, DO THOSE PAGES COMPORT WITH YOUR UNDERSTANDING

         4  OF WHAT SUN BELIEVED WOULD HAPPEN WITH JAVA, NAMELY, AS

         5  MR. GOSLING SAYS AT PAGE 55, THAT SUN STRATEGY AT THE TIME

         6  WAS, TO A CERTAIN EXTENT, "THAT WE, THE JAVA ORGANIZATION,

         7  WOULD NOT WORRY ABOUT PERFORMANCE ON ANY PARTICULAR

         8  PLATFORM, BUT WE WOULD TRY TO CONCENTRATE ON OUR EFFORTS

         9  ON CORRECT EXECUTION OF CROSS-PLATFORMS"?  DO YOU SEE

        10  THAT?

        11  A.   YES.

        12  Q.   IS THAT CONSISTENT WITH WHAT YOU THOUGHT WAS YOUR

        13  UNDERSTANDING OF WHAT SUN'S STRATEGY WAS IN DEVELOPING

        14  JAVA?

        15  A.   OH, YES.

        16  Q.   AND DO YOU UNDERSTAND THAT THERE WERE ANY PERFORMANCE

        17  ADVANTAGES TO THE WAY MICROSOFT IMPLEMENTED JAVA

        18  TECHNOLOGIES?

        19  A.   WELL, I DO KNOW SOME THINGS ABOUT THAT, YES.

        20  Q.   CAN YOU ANSWER THAT QUESTION YES OR NO?

        21  A.   I AM ANSWERING IT.

        22  Q.   EXCUSE ME.  I THINK I'M ENTITLED TO A YES OR NO AND

        23  THEN AS MUCH EXPLANATION AS YOU WANT.  YOU ARE WELCOME TO,

        24  SIR.

        25  A.   WELL, THEN YOU WILL HAVE TO TELL ME EXACTLY HOW YOU
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         1  PHRASED THE QUESTION.  I FORGOT.

         2  Q.   THE QUESTION, IN SIMPLEST TERMS, IS:  DO YOU

         3  UNDERSTAND THERE TO BE PERFORMANCE ENHANCEMENTS THAT ARE A

         4  RESULT OF MICROSOFT'S IMPLEMENTATION OF JAVA TECHNOLOGIES?

         5  A.   I THINK THAT IS AT LEAST UNCLEAR, WHICH IS WHY I

         6  CANNOT GIVE YOU A YES-OR-NO ANSWER.

         7  Q.   OKAY.  COULD YOU TURN TO PARAGRAPH 212.

         8  A.   WOULD YOU LIKE ME TO TELL YOU WHY?

         9  Q.   IF YOU NEED TO MAKE YOUR ANSWER CLEAR, CERTAINLY.

        10  A.   I CERTAINLY DO.

        11           I AM AWARE OF THE FACT THAT CERTAIN BENCHMARK

        12  TESTS SHOW THAT JAVA WRITTEN--LET ME SIMPLY SAY THAT

        13  MICROSOFT'S JVM FOR WINDOWS RUNS FASTER THAN, I THINK, ITS

        14  NAVIGATOR JVM FOR WINDOWS.

        15           HOWEVER, THERE ARE A COUPLE OF PROBLEMS WITH THAT

        16  IN ANSWERING YOUR QUESTION.  ONE PROBLEM IS THAT RAW SPEED

        17  MAY NOT BE VISIBLE TO THE USER SO THIS MAY OR MAY NOT

        18  MATTER.

        19           PERHAPS A MORE SERIOUS PROBLEM CONCERNS THE

        20  NATURE OF BENCHMARK TESTS, ABOUT WHICH I DO KNOW

        21  SOMETHING, OVER SOME LONG PERIOD OF TIME.  BENCHMARK TESTS

        22  HAVE THE PROBLEM THAT THEY NECESSARILY--THERE ARE TWO

        23  THINGS WITH THEM.  ONE IS THE BENCHMARK TESTS HAVE THE

        24  PROBLEM THEY NECESSARILY DESCRIBE A PARTICULAR SET OF

        25  FEATURES.  MAYBE FEATURES IS THE WRONG WORD.  A PARTICULAR
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         1  SET OF ATTRIBUTES--LET'S PUT IT THAT WAY--AND TEST THEM OR

         2  HOW THE PROGRAM OR MACHINE IN THIS CASE WILL WORK FOR A

         3  PARTICULAR SET OF TESTS AND WHETHER THAT SET OF TESTS IS

         4  OR IS NOT TYPICAL OF A USER'S EXPERIENCE, IS OFTEN OR CAN

         5  BE OPEN TO SOME QUESTION.

         6           A SECOND PROBLEM WITH BENCHMARK TESTS HAS TO DO

         7  WITH THE POSSIBILITY THAT IF BENCHMARK TESTS GETS TO BE

         8  KNOWN WHEN THEY ARE, THEN COMPANIES, IN FACT, WILL DESIGN

         9  THE THINGS BEING TESTED TO TEST WELL ON THE PARTICULAR

        10  BENCHMARKS, AND THAT MAY NOT MEAN ANYTHING OUTSIDE.

        11  Q.   OKAY.  DO YOU KNOW ANYTHING ABOUT BENCHMARK TESTING

        12  ON THE DATE YOU FILED YOUR TESTIMONY, OF JAVA?

        13  A.   OF JAVA?

        14  Q.   JVM'S.

        15  A.   SORRY.  I KNEW WHAT I SAID AT THE OUTSET.  I KNEW

        16  THERE HAD BEEN BENCHMARK TESTS IN WHICH THE MICROSOFT JVM

        17  PERFORMED BETTER THAN, AS I SAY, WHAT WAS BEING TESTED

        18  AGAINST, WHICH WAS THE NAVIGATOR JVM.

        19  Q.   CAN YOU TURN TO PARAGRAPH 212.

        20  A.   ACTUALLY, AT THE RATE THESE PAPERS ARE PILING UP

        21  HERE, I'M NOT SURE I CAN.

        22  Q.   YOU SAY HERE THAT MICROSOFT EFFECTIVELY EXCLUDES

        23  NETSCAPE AND OTHER BROWSER COMPETITORS FROM THE MARKET,

        24  AND THEN WHAT I HAVE TO SAY IS A WONDERFUL TURN OF PHRASE,

        25  "LIMITING THEM TO A DECLINING BASE OF EXISTING USERS."
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         1           IS THAT TRUE?

         2  A.   WHAT?

         3  Q.   THAT NETSCAPE HAS A DECLINING BASE OF EXISTING USERS?

         4  A.   OH, YES.

         5  Q.   YOUR TESTIMONY AND YOUR OPINION IS THAT THE NUMBER OF

         6  USERS OF NETSCAPE'S BROWSING SOFTWARE IS DECLINING?

         7  A.   AH.  THE SHARE IS CERTAINLY DECLINING.  I'M NOT

         8  SURE--I WOULD HAVE TO THINK ABOUT THE QUESTION AS TO

         9  WHETHER THE ABSOLUTE NUMBER IS DECLINING.

        10  Q.   WOULD YOU AGREE WITH ME THAT IN COMMON ENGLISH

        11  PARLANCE, BASE OF EXISTING USERS REFER TO A TOTAL NUMBER

        12  AND NOT A SHARE?

        13  A.   OH, YES.

        14  Q.   AND YOU DON'T KNOW WHETHER THE TOTAL STOCK OF

        15  NETSCAPE BROWSERS BEING USED IS INCREASED OR DECREASED; IS

        16  THAT RIGHT?

        17  A.   WELL, I DON'T KNOW--AS I SIT HERE, I THINK IT'S

        18  POSSIBLE TO MAKE A SHOT AT IT, AND I CERTAINLY KNOW WHAT I

        19  THINK WILL HAPPEN IN THE FUTURE.

        20  Q.   LET ME ASK YOU IF I HAVE AN UNDERSTANDING WHAT HAS

        21  HAPPENED IN THE LAST TWO YEARS, WHICH IS ROUGHLY THE

        22  PERIOD IN WHICH THE CONDUCT THAT YOU DEEM ANTICOMPETITIVE

        23  HAS TAKEN UP.

        24  A.   I KNOW THAT NETSCAPE'S SHARE OF THE INSTALLED BASE

        25  HAS, BY ANYBODY'S MEASUREMENT, GONE CONSIDERABLY DOWN.
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         1  Q.   WHAT IS NETSCAPE'S USER BASE?  THAT'S THE QUESTION WE

         2  ARE TALKING ABOUT.

         3  A.   I UNDERSTAND THAT.

         4           IN ORDER TO TRANSLATE INTO THE USER BASE, YOU

         5  HAVE TO HAVE AN ESTIMATE OF HOW FAST THE NUMBER OF USERS

         6  TOTAL HAS GONE UP.

         7  Q.   OKAY.

         8  A.   I DON'T HAVE THAT NUMBER, AT LEAST NOT AT MY

         9  FINGERTIPS.  PROBABLY NOT AT THE FINGERTIPS OF THESE

        10  BINDERS, EITHER.  BUT IT WOULD BE SOMEWHAT SURPRISING TO

        11  ME IF IT'S GONE UP FAST ENOUGH TO OVERCOME THE DECLINE IN

        12  SHARE, AND CERTAINLY EVEN MORE SURPRISING THAT IT WOULD GO

        13  UP FAST ENOUGH TO OVERCOME THE PROJECTED DECLINING SHARE.

        14  Q.   IF I UNDERSTAND YOU CORRECTLY, YOU FELT IT WAS

        15  APPROPRIATE AND ACCEPTABLE FOR YOU TO COME TO THE OPINIONS

        16  YOU DID ON SUBJECTS LIKE THE APPLICATIONS BARRIER TO

        17  ENTRY, THE FUTURE COURSE OF THE MARKETS ABOUT WHICH YOU

        18  HAVE TESTIFIED, WITHOUT KNOWING WHETHER JUST A RAW NUMBER

        19  OF USERS OF NETSCAPE'S SOFTWARE IS INCREASING OR

        20  DECREASING?

        21  A.   YEAH, I THINK THAT'S RIGHT.  IT'S CLEAR TO ME ON ANY

        22  REASONABLE FORECAST THAT IT'S DECREASING.

        23           AND I HAVE TO REMIND YOU THAT THE REAL QUESTION

        24  IS NOT WHAT'S GOING TO NETSCAPE OR WHAT HAS HAPPENED TO

        25  NETSCAPE.  IT'S THE QUESTION OF WHETHER IE NOW HAS SO MANY
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         1  USERS OR NETSCAPE SO FEW, RELATIVELY FEW, THAT THE THREAT

         2  TO MICROSOFT'S MONOPOLY THAT WAS PRESENTED BY NETSCAPE HAS

         3  EFFECTIVELY BEEN THWARTED.  I BELIEVE THAT'S HAPPENED, AND

         4  MICROSOFT BELIEVES IT'S HAPPENED.

         5  Q.   I SEE.  LOOK AT PARAGRAPH 219.

         6           THE COURT:  HOW MUCH LONGER ARE YOU LIKELY TO GO,

         7  MR. LACOVARA?  I'M NOT HOLDING A STOPWATCH ON YOU.

         8           MR. LACOVARA:  OH, NO.  I WAS WONDERING WHETHER I

         9  COULD COME BACK WITH A SNAPPER ONE-LINER.  TEN MINUTES OR

        10  LESS.

        11           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  TAKE YOUR TEN MINUTES.

        12  219?

        13           MR. LACOVARA:  YES, SIR.

        14  BY MR. LACOVARA:

        15  Q.   YOU QUOTE A DOCUMENT FROM KUMAR MEHTA OF MICROSOFT

        16  THAT TALKS ABOUT USER BEHAVIOR IN MARCH OF 1997.  AND THEN

        17  YOU SAY IN PARAGRAPH 220 THAT THE IMPORTANT QUESTION, AS

        18  YOU CALL IT, IS WHAT USERS WILL DO UNDER PREVAILING MARKET

        19  CONDITIONS.  OKAY?

        20  A.   YES.

        21  Q.   DID I SUMMARIZE THESE PORTIONS OF YOUR TESTIMONY

        22  ACCURATELY?

        23  A.   YES.

        24  Q.   DID YOU ATTEMPT TO SEE WHAT USERS ARE DOING TODAY AS

        25  OPPOSED TO IN MARCH OF 1997 ON THE QUESTION OF HOW THEY
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         1  GET SOFTWARE AND, SPECIFICALLY, THEIR WILLINGNESS TO

         2  DOWNLOAD SOFTWARE?

         3  A.   WELL, I HAVE SOME INFORMATION ON DOWNLOADS, AND I'M

         4  PRETTY SURE IT'S POST-MARCH 1997, YES.

         5  Q.   DID YOU ASK ANY OF YOUR COLLEAGUES AT THE DEPARTMENT

         6  OF JUSTICE TO SEE WHETHER MR. MEHTA HAD DONE LATER

         7  ANALYSES THAN THE ALMOST TWO-YEAR-OLD ANALYSIS THAT YOU

         8  CHOSE TO PUT INTO YOUR TESTIMONY?

         9  A.   WELL, IT WASN'T ALMOST TWO YEARS OLD WHEN I PUT IT

        10  IN.  BUT IN ANY EVENT, NO, I DON'T RECALL DOING THAT.

        11  Q.   OKAY.  WHAT IS YOUR BEST ESTIMATE, LOOKING AT WHAT

        12  MR. MEHTA TALKS ABOUT, AS TO THE PERCENTAGE OF USERS WHO

        13  HAVE TODAY DOWNLOADED SOFTWARE?

        14  A.   I DON'T THINK ANYBODY KNOWS, AND I WILL TELL YOU WHY.

        15  DOWNLOAD STATISTICS TEND TO COME IN A FORM THAT MAKES IT

        16  HARD TO BE SERIOUS ABOUT THIS.  LET ME EXPLAIN.

        17           A DOWNLOAD--AN ATTEMPT TO DOWNLOAD WILL BE

        18  RECORDED OFTEN AS A DOWNLOAD, WHETHER IT IS SUCCESSFULLY

        19  COMPLETED OR NOT.  ON THAT BASIS, I, MYSELF, HAVE

        20  DOWNLOADED IE--WELL, I NOW HAVE IE 4, WHICH I DIDN'T

        21  DOWNLOAD, AND I FORGET WHETHER IT'S IE 4 OR IE 3 THAT I

        22  ATTEMPTED TO DOWNLOAD TWICE UNSUCCESSFULLY.  ON THAT

        23  BASIS, I COUNTED FOR TWO DOWNLOADS, AND I WOULDN'T COUNT

        24  MYSELF IN ANY REASONABLE SENSE AS ANY.

        25  Q.   WELL, I'M NOT SURE THAT'S AN ACCURATE STATEMENT.
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         1           WHAT KIND OF DATA IS MR. MEHTA USING IN THE

         2  DOCUMENT YOU CITE?  HE'S NOT GOING OFF ATTEMPTED DOWNLOAD

         3  DATA, IS HE, SIR?

         4  A.   I THINK HE--WHY DON'T I LOOK.

         5  Q.   PLEASE.

         6  A.   I'M SORRY, COULD YOU POINT ME BACK TO WHICH PARAGRAPH

         7  WE ARE LOOKING AT?

         8  Q.   219, I BELIEVE.

         9  A.   THANK YOU.

        10           MR. LACOVARA, YOU DON'T KNOW WHAT A RELIEF IT IS

        11  THAT I PICKED UP THE FOURTH OF THESE BINDERS.

        12  Q.   PERHAPS I DO, DR. FISHER.

        13  A.   IT LOOKS TO ME LIKE IT'S SURVEY RESEARCH, BUT I CAN'T

        14  BE SURE.

        15  Q.   AND IN FACT, THERE ARE FIRMS WHOSE BUSINESS IS TO

        16  PERFORM SURVEYS, TO ASK PEOPLE NOT WHETHER THEY ATTEMPTED

        17  TO DOWNLOAD SOMETHING BUT WHETHER THEY, IN FACT,

        18  SUCCESSFULLY DID; CORRECT?

        19  A.   YES.

        20  Q.   DID YOU SEEK TO FIND OUT WHETHER THERE WAS MORE

        21  RECENT SURVEY DATA?

        22  A.   I DO NOT RECALL ASKING FOR THAT EXPLICITLY.

        23  Q.   DID YOU SEEK TO DETERMINE HOW IMPORTANT, IN FACT,

        24  DOWNLOADS OR ANY OTHER CHANNEL OF DISTRIBUTION HAS BEEN

        25  FOR NETSCAPE WEB-BROWSING SOFTWARE VERSUS MICROSOFT
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         1  WEB-BROWSING SOFTWARE?

         2  A.   WELL, SINCE IE COMES LOADED ON MOST PEOPLE'S

         3  MACHINES, THEY WOULD NOT OBTAIN IT THROUGH DOWNLOADS, SO I

         4  ASSUMED THAT IT IS THE CASE THAT TO THE EXTENT THE

         5  DOWNLOADS MATTER, THE DOWNLOADS ARE MORE IMPORTANT FOR

         6  NETSCAPE THAN FOR MICROSOFT.

         7           I'M NOT TALKING ABOUT DOWNLOADS THROUGH AN ISP.

         8  Q.   THAT WOULD BE YOUR ASSUMPTION?

         9  A.   THAT WOULD BE MY ASSUMPTION.  NOW, I DO NOT KNOW FROM

        10  DATA, IN FACT.

        11           MR. LACOVARA:  NOTHING FURTHER FROM THE WITNESS

        12  AT THIS TIME, YOUR HONOR.  THANK YOU VERY MUCH,

        13  DR. FISHER.

        14           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  WE WILL TAKE A BRIEF

        15  RECESS.

        16           WHAT DO WE ANTICIPATE, MR. BOIES, IN THE WAY OF

        17  REDIRECT?

        18           MR. BOIES:  YOUR HONOR, I HAVE ABOUT THREE HOURS

        19  OF REDIRECT.

        20           THE COURT:  SO, WE ARE PROBABLY GOING TO BE

        21  BRINGING DR. FISHER BACK; IS THAT RIGHT?

        22           MR. BOIES:  YOUR HONOR, WE NEED TO DO THAT, IN

        23  ANY EVENT, BECAUSE WE HAVE THE PORTION OF HIS EXAMINATION

        24  THAT WILL BE SUBJECT TO MOTION TO CLOSE THE COURTROOM.

        25           AND MR. LACOVARA--
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         1           THE COURT:  ARE WE GOING TO REACH THAT TODAY?

         2           MR. BOIES:  NO.  MR. LACOVARA AND I AGREED THAT

         3  WE WOULD REACH THAT ON MONDAY, SO WE HAVE ALL THE

         4  MATERIALS THAT WE NEED.

         5           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  WE WILL TAKE A BRIEF

         6  RECESS.

         7           (BRIEF RECESS.)

         8           THE COURT:  THIS BEING THURSDAY AFTERNOON, PICK A

         9  CONVENIENT POINT AT WHICH YOU WANT TO RECESS.

        10           MR. BOIES:  OKAY, YOUR HONOR.  I WILL.

        11                     REDIRECT EXAMINATION

        12  BY MR. BOIES:

        13  Q.   PROFESSOR FISHER, THERE ARE JUST A FEW THINGS I WOULD

        14  LIKE TO DEAL WITH YOU THIS AFTERNOON BEFORE WE BREAK FOR

        15  THE WEEKEND, WHEN IT'S FRESH IN EVERYBODY'S MIND AND DEAL

        16  WITH SOME OF THE THINGS THAT MR. LACOVARA TREATED TODAY.

        17           FIRST, MR. LACOVARA ASKED YOU ABOUT PLAINTIFFS'

        18  EXHIBIT 183 AND SOME TESTIMONY BY MR. SILVERBERG.  DO YOU

        19  RECALL THAT?

        20  A.   YES, I DO.

        21  Q.   WHAT I WOULD LIKE TO DO IS PUT PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT

        22  183 UP ON THE SCREEN, IF WE CAN.

        23           AND CAN YOU READ THAT OFF THE SCREEN, PROFESSOR

        24  FISHER?

        25  A.   NO, BUT I CAN PROBABLY FIND PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 83.
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         1           MR. LACOVARA:  IT SAYS 109.

         2           THE WITNESS:  IS IT OKAY IF I FIND IT?

         3  BY MR. BOIES:

         4  Q.   ABSOLUTELY.  THAT WOULD BE TERRIFIC.

         5           THE COURT:  MAYBE WE COULD FIND AN APPROPRIATE

         6  HAIKU TO GO WITH THIS.

         7           MR. BOIES:  I THINK, PERHAPS, THE LAST ONE THE

         8  COURT QUOTED THIS MORNING IS THE ONE THAT'S MAYBE

         9  APPROPRIATE.

        10           THE WITNESS:  I COULD FIND IT.

        11  BY MR. BOIES:

        12  Q.   WE COULD COME BACK TO IT ON MONDAY, UNLESS YOU CAN

        13  FIND IT QUICKLY.

        14  A.   I DON'T CARE WHEN YOU WANT TO ASK ME ABOUT IT.

        15  WHETHER YOU ARE ASKING ME IF I CAN FIND IT IN THE NEXT 30

        16  SECONDS, THE ANSWER IS YES.

        17  Q.   GREAT.

        18           (PAUSE.)

        19  A.   YES, I HAVE IT.

        20  Q.   OKAY.

        21  A.   183?  I'M SORRY.  I HAVE THE SAME PROBLEM THE COURT

        22  APPEARS TO HAVE.  BEHIND THE THING THAT SAYS 183 ON MY TAB

        23  IS, IN FACT, PLAINTIFFS' EXHIBIT 109, AND THAT IS THE ONE

        24  THAT IS APPROPRIATELY REFERRED TO IN THE TESTIMONY.

        25  Q.   OKAY.  LET'S REFER TO--
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         1  A.   I BELIEVE IT'S THE ONE THAT'S SHOWING UP THERE NOW.

         2  Q.   OKAY.  JUST SO WE ARE CLEAR, THIS IS A MEMORANDUM

         3  FROM BRAD SILVERBERG; IS THAT RIGHT?

         4  A.   YES.

         5  Q.   DATED MARCH 15, 1996?

         6  A.   THAT'S RIGHT.

         7  Q.   AND PERHAPS WE COULD BLOW UP THE TEXTUAL PORTION.

         8  A.   THAT'S THE ONE.

         9  Q.   AND MR. SILVERBERG WRITES, TOM EVSLIN--AND YOU

        10  UNDERSTAND WHAT COMPANY HE'S ASSOCIATED WITH?

        11  A.   HE'S ASSOCIATED WITH AT&T.

        12  Q.   MR. SILVERBERG WRITES, "TOM EVSLIN HAS TOLD ME, A, HE

        13  WANTS TO TALK ABOUT IE SEPARATELY FROM MSN; AND B, HE VERY

        14  BADLY WANTS IN THE WINDOWS BOX.  I HAVE TOLD HIM THE ONLY

        15  WAY WE CAN EVEN CONSIDER AT&T BEING IN THE WINDOWS BOX IS

        16  IF AT&T GIVES IE EXCLUSIVE OR VERY, VERY PREFERENTIAL

        17  TREATMENT, A LA WHAT WE HAVE WITH AOL.  PARITY IS

        18  COMPLETELY UNACCEPTABLE FOR THEM TO BE IN THE BOX.  HE

        19  GROANED.  I TOLD HIM IT WAS COMPLETELY NONNEGOTIABLE, AND

        20  HE HAD TO DECIDE."

        21           NOW, IS THAT CONSISTENT WITH THE CONCLUSIONS THAT

        22  YOU REACHED, SIR?

        23  A.   IT CERTAINLY IS.

        24  Q.   NOW, MR. LACOVARA ASKED YOU ABOUT SOME DEPOSITION

        25  TESTIMONY IN WHICH MR. SILVERBERG, DURING THE PENDENCY OF
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         1  THIS LAWSUIT, TALKED ABOUT THERE BEING A CONTEXT FOR THIS

         2  ABOUT AT&T SAYING THEY WERE KING OF THE HILL AND THEY

         3  WEREN'T GOING TO DO ANYTHING FOR MICROSOFT.  DO YOU RECALL

         4  THAT?

         5  A.   I REMEMBER.

         6  Q.   DID YOU SEE ANY STATEMENT LIKE THAT IN ANY OF THE

         7  CONTEMPORANEOUS DOCUMENTS THAT MR. SILVERBERG WROTE?

         8  A.   I DID NOT.

         9           AND, INDEED, WHAT'S UP THERE IN WHICHEVER EXHIBIT

        10  NUMBER THIS TURNS OUT TO BE, EITHER 183 OR 109, BUT THE

        11  PART YOU JUST READ IS QUITE CONSISTENT WITH VARIOUS OTHER

        12  DOCUMENTS FROM MICROSOFT THAT SAY, YOU KNOW, THE WINDOWS

        13  DESKTOP OR THE WINDOWS BOXES ARE OUR MOST IMPORTANT ASSET

        14  AND ITS USE OF THE BOX.

        15  Q.   IN TERMS OF DOING AN ECONOMIC ANALYSIS, ARE THERE

        16  ADVANTAGES, IN YOUR OPINION, TO RELYING ON CONTEMPORANEOUS

        17  DOCUMENTS?

        18  A.   I THINK THERE ARE ADVANTAGES TO RELYING ON

        19  CONTEMPORANEOUS DOCUMENTS--WELL, AS COMPARED TO WHAT?

        20  Q.   WELL, LET ME COMPARE THEM WITH A COUPLE OF DIFFERENT

        21  THINGS.

        22           I HAD IN MIND SPECIFICALLY AFTER-THE-FACT

        23  DEPOSITIONS DURING THE PENDENCY OF LITIGATION, BUT SINCE

        24  YOU RAISED IT, I'M ALSO REMINDED ABOUT SOME OF THE

        25  QUESTIONS MR. LACOVARA ASKED YOU EARLIER ABOUT WHETHER YOU
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         1  HAD CONDUCTED INTERVIEWS OF PEOPLE.

         2  A.   AH.

         3  Q.   AND SO I WOULD ASK YOU TO CONSIDER THE QUESTION IN

         4  BOTH CONTEXTS.

         5  A.   WELL, IN TERMS OF EITHER ECONOMIC ANALYSIS OR COMMON

         6  SENSE, IT HELPS TO KNOW WHAT PEOPLE WERE DOING OR TALKING

         7  ABOUT CONTEMPORANEOUSLY, PARTICULARLY IF WE ARE TALKING

         8  ABOUT PEOPLE WHO ARE THEN--WHO THEN HAVE AN INTEREST IN

         9  THE OUTCOME OF THE LAWSUIT.  THAT'S APART FROM THE

        10  QUESTION OF WHETHER RECOLLECTION MAY LATER FADE.

        11           IN TERMS OF RELYING ON CONTEMPORANEOUS DOCUMENTS

        12  OR, FOR THAT MATTER, TESTIMONY AS OPPOSED TO MAKING

        13  INTERVIEWS, OR HAVING INTERVIEWS, I WOULD SAY THE

        14  FOLLOWING:

        15           THERE IS AN AWFUL LOT OF MATERIAL TO GET THROUGH.

        16  IT IS A LOT MORE EFFICIENT TO READ--AND READ THE SWORN

        17  TESTIMONY WHERE THE APPROPRIATE QUESTIONS WERE ASKED IN

        18  DEPOSITION, LET'S SAY, AND THEN ANSWERED UNDER OATH THAN

        19  IT IS TO TRY TO GET SIMILAR INFORMATION BY CONDUCTING MY

        20  OWN INTERVIEWS.  THAT'S NOT TO SAY THAT INTERVIEWS ARE

        21  USELESS; THEY'RE NOT.  AND INDEED, MY ASSOCIATES AT CRA

        22  DID PARTICIPATE IN CONVERSATIONS WITH--OR REPRESENTATIVES

        23  ABOUT SEVEN OR EIGHT OR SIX--I FORGET.  SIX TO EIGHT

        24  DIFFERENT INDUSTRY PARTICIPANTS, AND THEY INFORMED ME

        25  ABOUT THEM, BUT THAT'S A SLOW WAY TO DO IT.
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         1  Q.   BASED ON THE NUMBER OF DOCUMENTS AND DEPOSITIONS AND

         2  TRIAL TESTIMONY THAT YOU HAD ACCESS TO, DID YOU FEEL THAT

         3  IT WAS NECESSARY TO HAVE ANY INTERVIEWS OTHER THAN THE

         4  ONES THE CRA PEOPLE CONDUCTED FOR YOU?

         5  A.   YES, I DID, AND I HAD ONE.  THIS MAY NOT BE WHAT YOU

         6  MEAN.

         7           THERE WAS SUFFICIENT DISCUSSION OF DIFFERENT

         8  TECHNICAL TERMS THAT I THOUGHT IT WAS BEST TO HAVE A

         9  PERSONAL CONVERSATION ON THE QUESTION OF JUST WHAT

        10  DIFFERENT TERMS MEANT.  AND I, TOGETHER WITH OTHERS,

        11  INCLUDING PEOPLE AT CRA, PARTICIPATED IN THE PHONE CALL

        12  WITH PROFESSOR FELTEN ABOUT THAT.

        13  Q.   BASED ON ALL THE WORK THAT YOU HAVE DONE, DO YOU

        14  BELIEVE THAT YOU NOW HAVE SUFFICIENT BASIS FOR THE

        15  QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS AND TESTIMONY THAT YOU HAVE GIVEN AT

        16  THIS TRIAL?

        17  A.   OH, YES.

        18  Q.   MR. LACOVARA ASKED YOU A NUMBER OF QUESTIONS ABOUT

        19  WHAT INFORMATION YOU HAD AVAILABLE TO YOU WHEN YOU

        20  SUBMITTED YOUR WRITTEN DIRECT TESTIMONY.  DO YOU RECALL

        21  THAT?

        22  A.   YES.

        23  Q.   NOW, YOUR WRITTEN DIRECT TESTIMONY WAS SUBMITTED

        24  PRIOR TO THIS TRIAL COMMENCING AT ALL; IS THAT CORRECT?

        25  A.   YES.
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         1  Q.   NOW, HAVE YOU READ THE TRIAL TRANSCRIPTS OF THIS

         2  TRIAL?

         3  A.   I HAVE.

         4  Q.   AND HAVE YOU READ EXHIBITS THAT WERE INTRODUCED

         5  DURING THIS TRIAL?

         6  A.   I HAVE.

         7  Q.   AND HAVE YOU CONSIDERED THOSE AS WELL AS THE

         8  INFORMATION THAT YOU HAD AVAILABLE TO YOU AT THE TIME THAT

         9  YOUR WRITTEN TESTIMONY WAS PREPARED?

        10  A.   INDEED I HAVE.  I INCLUDE IN THAT THE DIRECT

        11  TESTIMONY OF OTHER WITNESSES.

        12  Q.   LET ME ASK YOU AND SEE IF I CAN GET THIS DOCUMENT

        13  RIGHT.  THIS IS GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 421.

        14           AND IS THIS A DOCUMENT THAT YOU REVIEWED AS PART

        15  OF YOUR ANALYSIS?

        16  A.   YES.

        17           (DOCUMENT HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)

        18  A.   THANKS.

        19           MR. BOIES:  YOUR HONOR, I WILL OFFER THIS

        20  EXHIBIT.  IT MAY BE THAT THIS EXHIBIT HAS SOME PRICING

        21  INFORMATION THAT MICROSOFT WOULD LIKE TO HAVE SEALED.  FOR

        22  MY PURPOSES, I'M ONLY GOING TO USE PAGE 680 OF THE

        23  DOCUMENT.  AND SO, WHAT I WOULD DO NOW IS OFFER THE COVER

        24  PAGE PLUS PAGE 680, AND THEN WE CAN OFFER THE ENTIRE

        25  DOCUMENT OR SUCH PORTIONS AS WE MAY JOINTLY AGREE.
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         1           MR. LACOVARA:  NO OBJECTION TO OFFERING THOSE TWO

         2  PAGES AT THIS TIME, YOUR HONOR.

         3           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  THE COVER PAGE AND PAGE,

         4  LOOKS LIKE, BATES NUMBER MS 7000680--

         5           MR. BOIES:  YES, YOUR HONOR.

         6           THE COURT:  --ARE ADMITTED.

         7                         (GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT NO. 421 WAS

         8                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)

         9  BY MR. BOIES:

        10  Q.   NOW, THIS IS A MICROSOFT OEM SALES REVIEW DATED

        11  JANUARY 22, 1998, APPARENTLY PREPARED BY MR. KEMPIN, AND

        12  PAGE 680 IS LABELED "INTERNET BROWSER REPORT CARD."

        13           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        14  A.   I DO.

        15  Q.   AND WHAT USE, IF ANY, DID YOU MAKE OF THIS DOCUMENT

        16  IN YOUR ANALYSIS?

        17  A.   WELL, THE PRINCIPAL USE I CAN THINK OF RIGHT NOW WAS

        18  IT WAS INVOLVED--I REFER TO IT DIRECTLY IN MY TESTIMONY

        19  THIS MORNING IN TRYING TO ANSWER THE QUESTION OF WHAT

        20  FRACTION OF OEM SALES HAD NAVIGATOR SHIPPED IN ONE FORM OR

        21  ANOTHER.  THIS IS--WHAT I SAID THIS MORNING, THIS WAS ONE

        22  OF THE TWO SOURCES FOR THAT, THE OTHER BEING THE TESTIMONY

        23  OF MR. BARKSDALE.

        24  Q.   AND WHAT DOES THIS DOCUMENT SHOW?

        25  A.   THE DOCUMENT SHOWS QUITE CLEARLY THAT WHILE BASICALLY
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         1  EVERYBODY SHIPS IE, NAVIGATOR IS SHIPPED BY RELATIVELY FEW

         2  OEM'S.  AND ONE CAN SEE THAT FOR SOME OF THEM, ANYWAY,

         3  NAVIGATOR IS NOT SHIPPED ON THE ENTIRE LINE.

         4  Q.   I WANT TO COVER JUST TWO ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTS WITH

         5  YOU THIS AFTERNOON, PROFESSOR FISHER.  FIRST IS GOVERNMENT

         6  EXHIBIT 518.  WHICH IS ALREADY IN EVIDENCE.

         7           AND IN THIS CONNECTION, I'M GOING TO ASK YOU

         8  ABOUT A SUBJECT MR. LACOVARA COVERED WITH YOU, WHICH WAS

         9  THE EXTENT TO WHICH MICROSOFT DID THINGS THAT MADE

        10  BUSINESS SENSE APART FROM THEIR ANTICOMPETITIVE EFFECTS.

        11  DO YOU RECALL THAT GENERAL SUBJECT?

        12  A.   I DO.

        13  Q.   THIS IS, AT THE BOTTOM, A DOCUMENT FROM MR. BEN

        14  SLIVKA OF MICROSOFT TO MR. MARITZ AND MR. SILVERBERG AND

        15  MR. MUGLIA AND MR. CHASE AND A VARIETY OF OTHER PEOPLE ON

        16  THE SUBJECT OF MICROSOFT JAVA STRATEGY.  AND I WOULD LIKE

        17  TO GO TO THE SECOND PAGE AT THE BOTTOM WHERE THE HEADING

        18  IS MICROSOFT JAVA STRATEGY.

        19  A.   YES.

        20  Q.   AND NUMBER TWO SAYS, "DON'T ENCOURAGE NEW

        21  CROSS-PLATFORM JAVA CLASSES.  ESPECIALLY, DON'T HELP GET

        22  GREAT WINDOWS (SIC) 32 IMPLEMENTATIONS WRITTEN OR

        23  DEPLOYED."

        24           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        25           MR. LACOVARA:  EXCUSE ME, BUT MR. BOIES DIDN'T
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         1  READ THAT CORRECTLY.  IT DOESN'T SAY WINDOWS 32.

         2           MR. BOIES:  IT SAYS WIN32.

         3  BY MR. BOIES:

         4  Q.   IT SAYS, "DON'T ENCOURAGE NEW CROSS-PLATFORM JAVA

         5  CLASSES.  ESPECIALLY, DON'T HELP GET GREAT WIN32

         6  IMPLEMENTATIONS WRITTEN OR DEPLOYED."

         7           DO YOU SEE THAT?

         8  A.   I DO.

         9  Q.   WHAT SIGNIFICANCE, IF ANY, DOES THAT HAVE TO YOUR

        10  ANALYSIS?

        11  A.   WELL, WHAT MICROSOFT DID WITH JAVA, AS I TESTIFIED

        12  THIS AFTERNOON, WAS ESSENTIALLY TO ENGAGE IN A STRATEGY

        13  WHICH DISCOURAGED OR SUBVERTED CROSS-PLATFORM JAVA.  AND

        14  THIS IS QUITE CONSISTENT WITH IT.  DON'T ENCOURAGE

        15  CROSS-PLATFORM JAVA CLASSES, AND IT WOULD DOUBTLESS HELP

        16  THE JAVA IF APPLICATIONS WRITTEN IN CROSS-PLATFORM JAVA

        17  HAD GREAT WIN32 IMPLEMENTATIONS.

        18           WIN32, AS I ASSUME WE ALL KNOW, IS 32-BIT

        19  WINDOWS, WHICH REFERS TO WINDOWS 95 AND 98 AND WINDOWS NT.

        20  Q.   LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK NEXT AT GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT

        21  235.

        22  A.   I GOT THAT ONE.

        23           MR. BOIES:  WHICH I WOULD OFFER IN EVIDENCE AT

        24  THIS TIME.

        25           MR. LACOVARA:  NO OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR.
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         1           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  GOVERNMENT'S 235 IS

         2  ADMITTED.

         3                         (GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT NO. 235 WAS

         4                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)

         5  BY MR. BOIES:

         6  Q.   THE PORTION THAT I'M MOST INTERESTED IN IS THE E-MAIL

         7  FROM MR. ERIC ENGSTROM TO MR. SILVERBERG AND A VARIETY OF

         8  OTHER PEOPLE, INCLUDING MR. ALLCHIN.  AND THE SUBJECT IS

         9  INTEL AND MICROSOFT'S NEW PROPOSED COLLABORATIVE

        10  MULTIMEDIA EFFORTS.

        11           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        12  A.   YES.

        13  Q.   AND I WANT TO GO AT THE VERY BOTTOM OF THE PAGE AND

        14  BLOW UP THE VERY LAST POINT.

        15           AND THIS IS ONE OF THE GOALS THAT MICROSOFT

        16  IDENTIFIES, AND THE GOAL IS STATED TO BE INTEL TO STOP

        17  HELPING SUN CREATE JAVA MULTIMEDIA API'S ESPECIALLY ONES

        18  THAT RUN WELL IE NATIVE IMPLEMENTATIONS ON WINDOWS.

        19           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        20  A.   I DO.

        21  Q.   DOES THIS HAVE ANY SIGNIFICANCE TO YOUR ANALYSIS?

        22  A.   WELL, IT'S, IN EFFECT, THE SAME THING.  MICROSOFT IS

        23  IN THE BUSINESS OF TRYING TO PREVENT--SUN, OF COURSE,

        24  WOULD WRITE CROSS-PLATFORM JAVA, IS INTERESTED IN

        25  PROMOTING CROSS-PLATFORM JAVA.  SUN IS THE ORIGINAL
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         1  PROPRIETOR OF JAVA.  AND WHAT THIS HAS TO DO WITH IS WE

         2  DON'T WANT THEM TO GET ANY HELP.

         3           AND INDEED, WE PARTICULARLY DON'T WANT THEM TO BE

         4  ABLE TO SAY THEY COULD DO THINGS OR PROVIDE API'S THAT

         5  WOULD ALLOW YOU TO RUN THINGS WELL ON WINDOWS, THE

         6  IMPLICATION BEING THAT, I THINK, IF YOU DID THAT,

         7  DEVELOPERS WOULD BE INTERESTED IN WRITING FOR THE SUN

         8  API'S, AND THAT WOULD ASSIST CROSS-PLATFORM JAVA AND

         9  THREATEN THE MICROSOFT MONOPOLY.

        10  Q.   NOW, MR. LACOVARA SUGGESTED A NUMBER OF QUESTIONS TO

        11  YOU THAT WHAT MICROSOFT WAS REALLY DOING WAS TRYING TO

        12  MAKE WINDOWS MORE ATTRACTIVE TO USERS, WAS TRYING TO

        13  INCREASE THE FUNCTIONALITY OF WINDOWS.  DO YOU RECALL

        14  THAT?

        15  A.   YES.

        16  Q.   WHAT SIGNIFICANCE, IF ANY, DO THESE KIND OF

        17  STATEMENTS AND ANALYSES HAVE TO WHETHER THAT IS A FAIR

        18  REFLECTION OF WHAT MICROSOFT IS TRYING TO DO?

        19  A.   WELL, THE MORE THINGS THAT WILL RUN WELL ON WINDOWS,

        20  PRESUMABLY, THE BETTER IS WINDOWS FUNCTIONALITY, THE

        21  BETTER IS--THE MORE ATTRACTIVE WINDOWS WILL BE TO USERS.

        22  HERE IS SOMETHING THAT SUGGESTS THAT MICROSOFT WAS

        23  PARTICULARLY NOT INTERESTED IN HAVING SOMETHING THAT WOULD

        24  RUN WELL ON WINDOWS.

        25  Q.   IN THE USUAL SITUATION WHERE YOU HAD A COMPANY THAT
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         1  DID NOT HAVE MONOPOLY POWER AND WAS SELLING SOMETHING

         2  CALLED "WINDOWS," WOULD THAT COMPANY HAVE AN ECONOMIC

         3  INCENTIVE TO TRY TO GET PEOPLE TO CREATE API'S THAT RAN

         4  WELL ON WINDOWS?

         5  A.   ONE WOULD SUPPOSE SO.

         6  Q.   WHY IS THAT?

         7  A.   WELL, LET ME SEE IF I COULD GIVE YOU AN ANALOGY.

         8           WELL, AT THIS TIME OF DAY, I PROBABLY CAN'T GIVE

         9  YOU AN ANALOGY.  I HAVE TO GIVE YOU THE ANSWER DIRECTLY.

        10           I HAVE A PRODUCT.  I WANT PEOPLE TO BUY THE

        11  PRODUCT.  NOW, IF SOMEONE ELSE IS GOING TO MAKE A PRODUCT

        12  IN WHICH IT WILL TURN OUT--IT RUNS REALLY GREAT WITH MY

        13  PRODUCT, AND THAT'S SOMETHING PEOPLE WANT TO DO, THAT'S

        14  GOING TO MAKE MY PRODUCT MORE ATTRACTIVE.

        15           IN THE TERMS OF ECONOMIC ANALYSIS, THE TWO

        16  PRODUCTS WOULD TYPICALLY BE CALLED COMPLEMENTS, AND THE

        17  BETTER THE COMPLEMENTARY PRODUCT, THE MORE THE DEMAND IS

        18  GOING TO BE FOR MY ORIGINAL PRODUCT.

        19           ORDINARILY, I WOULD WANT TO ENCOURAGE OTHER

        20  PEOPLE TO PRODUCE BETTER COMPLEMENTS BECAUSE THAT WOULD

        21  MAKE THE PACKAGE OF MY PRODUCT AND THEIR PRODUCT BETTER.

        22  AND IF THEY COULD DO THAT BETTER THAN I CAN, OR EVEN JUST

        23  AS WELL AS I CAN, OR MAYBE IT DOESN'T MATTER, IT JUST

        24  GIVES CONSUMERS A CHOICE AS TO WHETHER THEY USE MY

        25  COMPLEMENTARY PRODUCT OR THEIR COMPLEMENTARY PRODUCT, IT'S
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         1  GOING TO INCREASE THE DEMAND FOR MY ORIGINAL PRODUCT, AND

         2  THAT'S WHAT I WOULD WANT.

         3  Q.   NOW, WHY WOULD A COMPANY TAKE THE OPPOSITE APPROACH?

         4  WHY WOULD A COMPANY SAY, "WE DON'T WANT GOOD COMPLEMENTS

         5  WRITTEN FOR OUR PRODUCTS"?

         6  A.   WELL, THERE ARE A COUPLE OF CIRCUMSTANCES IN WHICH

         7  THAT MIGHT BE TRUE.  GOING DIRECTLY TO WHAT I THINK IS AT

         8  ISSUE HERE, A COMPANY MIGHT VERY WELL DO THAT IF ALLOWING

         9  OTHER PEOPLE TO MAKE--SORRY.

        10           IF THE COMPANY HAD--LET ME CALL THE ORIGINAL

        11  PRODUCT "PRODUCT A" AND THE COMPLEMENTARY PRODUCT "PRODUCT

        12  B."  FOR THIS PURPOSE, THE PRODUCT A IS WINDOWS, AND

        13  PRODUCT B ARE JAVA MULTIMEDIA API'S AND SO FORTH.

        14           IF I HAD A MONOPOLY IN PRODUCT A AND GETTING

        15  PEOPLE TO MAKE PRODUCT B HAD THE PROPERTY THAT MIGHT LOWER

        16  THE BARRIERS TO ENTRY INTO PRODUCT A, THEN, ALLOWING

        17  PEOPLE TO DO IT MIGHT THREATEN MY MONOPOLY.  THAT COULD

        18  HAPPEN IN MORE THAN ONE WAY.  TO TAKE AWAY, WHICH IS NOT,

        19  I THINK, WHAT'S INVOLVED HERE--SUPPOSE THESE ARE FAIRLY

        20  COMPLICATED HARDWARE PRODUCTS, NOT NECESSARILY COMPUTER

        21  HARDWARE, BUT MACHINERY PRODUCTS, AND IT TURNS OUT THAT IF

        22  YOU LEARN HOW TO MAKE PRODUCT B, IT WILL THEN BECOME

        23  EASIER FOR YOU TO FIGURE OUT HOW TO MAKE PRODUCT A AND

        24  THEN YOU WILL BE ABLE TO COMPETE WITH ME, I MIGHT BE QUITE

        25  INTERESTED IN PREVENTING YOU FROM PRODUCING PRODUCT B.
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         1           IN THIS PARTICULAR CASE, IT'S THAT PRODUCT B, IF

         2  IT BECOMES SUCCESSFUL, MAY CONTRIBUTE TO A SITUATION IN

         3  WHICH THE THINGS THAT PROTECT MY MONOPOLY--IN THIS CASE,

         4  THE APPLICATION BARRIERS TO ENTRY--START TO DISAPPEAR.

         5           MR. BOIES:  YOUR HONOR, IF THIS IS A CONVENIENT

         6  TIME FOR THE COURT.

         7           THE COURT:  CONVENIENT FOR ME.

         8           THE WITNESS:  CONVENIENT FOR ME.

         9           THE COURT:  10:00 ON MONDAY MORNING.  HAVE A NICE

        10  WEEKEND, COUNSEL.

        11           (WHEREUPON, AT 4:07 P.M., THE HEARING WAS

        12  ADJOURNED UNTIL 10:00 A.M., MONDAY, JANUARY 11, 1999.)
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         1                   CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER

         2

         3           I, DAVID A. KASDAN, RMR, COURT REPORTER, DO

         4  HEREBY TESTIFY THAT THE FOREGOING PROCEEDINGS WERE

         5  STENOGRAPHICALLY RECORDED BY ME AND THEREAFTER REDUCED TO

         6  TYPEWRITTEN FORM BY COMPUTER-ASSISTED TRANSCRIPTION UNDER

         7  MY DIRECTION AND SUPERVISION; AND THAT THE FOREGOING

         8  TRANSCRIPT IS A TRUE RECORD AND ACCURATE RECORD OF THE

         9  PROCEEDINGS.

        10           I FURTHER CERTIFY THAT I AM NEITHER COUNSEL FOR,

        11  RELATED TO, NOR EMPLOYED BY ANY OF THE PARTIES TO THIS

        12  ACTION IN THIS PROCEEDING, NOR FINANCIALLY OR OTHERWISE

        13  INTERESTED IN THE OUTCOME OF THIS LITIGATION.

        14

                                    ______________________

        15                          DAVID A. KASDAN
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